
 
FINANCIAL AUDIT ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

 
Report 

 
Wednesday, December 18, 2024 

 
 

Present:  Councilor Malakie (Chair), Councilor Lipof, Councilor Oliver, Carl Valente Citizen 
Representative, Alex Jablon Citizen Representative, and JP Nahmias Citizen Representative 
 
Also present: Comptroller Stephen Curley, Deputy Comptroller Stela Zaloshnja, Accountant Jim 
Piotrowski and Accountant Zack Fentross.  
 
For more information regarding this meeting, a video recording can be found at the following link: 
Financial Audit Advisory Committee - December 18, 2024 
 
The Committee began with going over Draft Financial Statements.  
 
Jim Piotrowski began with the attached presentation and explained that all documents that were 
shared are drafts because the project is still going through quality control. Mr. Piotrowski 
acknowledged there are standard practice measures included in the Management Letter, but overall 
CLA presented clean opinions with no significant findings to note regarding internal controls and the 
Financial Statements. 
 
Zack Fentross presented highlights including Government-Wide Financial Statements, Governmental 
Funds Financial Statements, General Fund, Proprietary Funds Financial Statements (Sewer 
Enterprise, Water Enterprise, Stormwater Enterprise, and Internal Service), and Fiduciary Funds 
Financial Statements.  
   
Mr. Fentross noted that the City has 1.2 billion dollars in liabilities which is largely unchanged from 
the prior year, but experienced a significant decrease in net OPEB (Other Post Employment Benefits) 
liability due to a change in the City’s discount rate from 3.65% (municipal funds rate) to 6.00% 
(investment rate of return), a much more favorable rate for the City. This is the most significant 
change in the City’s financial statements from 2023 to 2024 from a long-term financial view. The 
change in rates was based on the actuary’s determination that the OPEB Trust Fund is unlikely to run 
out of funds in the future.  
 
A councilor asked if CLA could provide a recommendation on what kind of outstanding debt the City 
should have in terms of bonds payable. Mr. Piotrowski said to look at the ratio of unassigned fund 
balance (Free Cash) compared to the City’s annual debt service expenditure. Mr. Piotrowski said this 
is a short-term focus and will be covered later in the meeting while the Government-Wide Financial 
Statements have a long-term focus.  
 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=dNgBDAy3U4A&list=PLqJiDbsvfNjVp04t1IWmUn8msjci9iG8z
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A councilor asked about the discount rate change and if it was a stable situation now or if there was 
chance the City would have to go back to the lower municipal bond rate. Mr. Fentross said there is 
always a chance the City would have to change rates if for example, the City made changes to benefit 
terms or there was a major economic decline which impacted the City’s financial situation.  
 
A committee member asked what the trend has been for expenses and revenues for Governmental 
Activities over the last 12 months. Mr. Fentross answered that the question would be better 
answered when they talk about the short-term view of the City’s financial statements. Mr. Piotrowski 
answered that they generally trend upwards with growth in taxes and salaries.  
  
Mr. Fentross noted that the unassigned fund balance in the General Fund did change significantly 
from 2023 to 2024 due to the establishment of an Education Stabilization Fund during FY 24 with a 
starting balance of approximately $22 million. Mr. Fentross considered the unassigned fund balance, 
which matters to bond rating agencies, the most significant figure in the financial statements. Due 
to the movement of the $22 million from unassigned to committed, unassigned fund balance as a 
percent of total revenues dropped from 15.1% to 11.3%, but this should not be a concern once 
explained.  
 
A committee member asked if the restricted/committed/assigned fund balances were in line with 
what they expected and Mr. Fentross answered that yes, they were and that they do not change 
much year to year. Mr. Piotrowski explained that most financial experts would focus on the 
unassigned fund balance to determine the financial health of the City.  
 
Mr. Fentross shared several significant footnotes including Note 11 regarding long-term debt, Note 
14 regarding OPEB and sensitivity of the liability to changes in discount rate and health care expense 
trends, and Note 19 regarding pension and related balances. 
 
A councilor asked about the variability of health care expense trend rate and Mr. Piotrowski said it is 
actuarially determined so it is specific to the City but it does not change much year over year.  
 
Draft Management Letter 
 
Mr. Fentross shared the Management Letter which is where CLA would make any recommendations 
for how to improve internal controls. This year’s letter includes two special project areas chosen by 
the City (off-leash dog licenses and the Newton Community Education Program) as well as comments 
on financial close and reporting, and the general ledger integration of police details.  
 
For off-leash dog licenses, CLA recommended periodically reconciling license fees from City Hall 
Systems to MUNIS, comparing pre-numbered tags on hand to licenses issued in City Hall Systems, 
and performing various analytical reviews. Comptroller Steve Curley noted other reconciliations that 
do occur including between daily reports from City Hall Systems and the bank. He also noted that the 
Clerk’s Office is considering switching from City Hall Systems to OpenGov for dog and other licenses.  
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A councilor asked if the recommendations for off-leash dog licenses could be applied to dog licenses 
in general and Mr. Piotrowski confirmed that it could be because all dog licenses require a fee.  
 
For financial close and reporting, CLA had recommendations in two areas: analytically reviewing 
trends year over year to detect anomalies in the health insurance fund as part of the financial close 
process, and to consider implementation of an automated system for tracking capital assets and 
depreciation, instead of an Excel spreadsheet.  
 
In the health insurance fund, CLA’s procedures had identified $8.6 million in employee contributions 
misclassified as employer contributions, requiring an audit adjustment. The cause was an error in a 
spreadsheet created during the switch to Blue Cross and has been corrected.  
 
A councilor asked if there were any potential implications for the $8.6 million audit adjustment. Mr. 
Curley said that it was a misclassification but both contributions go into the health insurance fund so 
it will not have any year end tax implications for employees. Mr. Piotrowski said that it did not have 
any material impact but it was too big of a number to not report it to management so that is why it 
was included in the letter.  
 
A councilor asked about software options to avoid the depreciation errors noted in the capital assets 
Excel spreadsheet in the future and Mr. Fentross answered that there are programs available that 
would automate the depreciation calculation and streamline the process. Mr. Curley said he had 
reached out to several communities for feedback on software and there seems to be a relatively 
good system that is slightly antiquated but would do what the City needs it to do. This program is 
called Depreciation Works, and it is only a few hundred dollars a year. MUNIS also has a depreciation 
tool, but it is excessively expensive for what the City would be using the software for.  
 
For the Newton Community Education Program, Mr. Fentross noted that internal controls are 
operating correctly, and the issue is with their budgeting process. CLA recommended considering all 
costs associated with the program during annual budget, reviewing indirect cost allocation, adjusting 
pricing if necessary, reevaluating class size requirements, and conducting periodic reviews of 
financial performance.  
 
A committee member asked what type of fund this program is recorded under and Mr. Fentross 
answered that it is a revolving fund so it should be self-sustaining. The same member asked if the 
program had balances from prior years and Mr. Fentross confirmed that they did. They also asked if 
this was a Newton Public Schools’ program and Mr. Curley confirmed that it is. Mr. Curley added that 
this program is being discussed and reviewed by the School Committee currently.  
 
A councilor asked for clarification on program staffing resources and their contributions to pensions 
and OPEB. Mr. Curley answered that if any instructors were also NPS teachers, then they would not 
contribute to the pension but the seven program FTEs would be responsible for contributions. The 
same councilor mentioned that the program leaders have been working with the Treasury 
Department to switch to a lower percentage of credit card fees and asked if it had been implemented 
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yet. Mr. Curley said that he did know the conversation was happening but did not know about 
whether the change has been implemented yet.  
 
For the general ledger integration of police details, this is a repeat CLA recommendation going back 
to FY 2021, to continue the process of MUNIS general billing and moving forward with integration of 
police details when appropriate.   
 
A councilor asked why integration which was anticipated by the end of FY 23 has not occurred yet. 
Mr. Curley said this has been a joint project between multiple departments including Police IT but he 
did not know why it has not been implemented and when the response letter is generated, he will 
work with the departments to get an update for the committee. The same councilor asked if any 
other departments were not on MUNIS and Mr. Curley said that he could not think of any 
immediately but that there might be some small departments within the School Department that 
might be operating outside of MUNIS. The same councilor asked what issues were occurring because 
this recommendation had not been implemented yet like a loss of money and Mr. Fentross said no 
money was being lost but that this move was to help with ease of integration and utilizing MUNIS to 
the best of its abilities.  
 
Mr. Fentross shared there is a new GASB (Governmental Accounting Standards Board) statement, 
GASB 101, on compensated absences, which requires leave time that is more likely than not to be 
used be recognized as a liability. CLA’s recommendation is to continue preparing for implementation 
in FY 25, and anticipates no problem making this change.   
 
The Committee then discussed the upcoming schedule.  
 
The Committee will meet on April 9th, 2025 to discuss FY 24 single audit results and FY 25 audit 
planning.   
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Julia Malakie, Chair 



©2024 CliftonLarsonAllen LLP. CLA (CliftonLarsonAllen LLP) is an independent network member of CLA Global. See CLAglobal.com/disclaimer. 
Investment advisory services are offered through CliftonLarsonAllen Wealth Advisors, LLC, an SEC-registered investment advisor.
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Opinion

• Opinions

o Expected to be an Unmodified opinion on all opinion units (consistent 
with prior years)

 Best opinion available
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Financial Highlights
• Government-Wide Financial Statements (p 14-17)

o Statement of Net Position - Governmental Activities (p 14-15)
 Liabilities: $1.2b

• Bonds payable: $300m
• Net OPEB liability: $455m

o $205m decrease from the prior year 
• Net pension liability: $296m

o $15m decrease from the prior year 
 Net Position: ($422m)

• Net investment in capital assets: $409m
• Restrictions: $92m
• Unrestricted: ($923m) - $6.5m increase

o Statement of Net Position - Business-type Activities (p 14-15)
 Represent collective balances of enterprise funds, which are discussed individually further in this document
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Financial Highlights

• Government-Wide Financial Statements (continued)
o Statement of Activities - Governmental Activities (p 16-17)

 Increase in net position of $116m - see p 17
 Total expenses: $531m (p 16)

• Education: $324m, or 61%

 Total revenues and transfers: $647m (p 16-17)
• Program revenues: $161m (p 16)

o State Aid/Grants/Gifts for education: $92m
• General revenues and transfers: $486m (p 17)

• Real estate: $426m
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• Governmental Funds Financial Statements
o General Fund

 Balance Sheet (p 18)
• Fund balance: $128m (see p 72 for details below)

• Restricted: $2m (debt service and capital stabilization)
• Committed: $48m (FY 25 budget, cont. approp. Education stabilization, and 

capital)
• Assigned: $13m (encumbrances and capital)
• Unassigned: $65m

– Includes $26m of ”rainy day” stabilization funds
– Represents 11.3% of total revenues/OFS (p 9)
– 15.1% last year (p 9)
– See page 9 for historical trends

Financial Highlights
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Financial Highlights
o General Fund

 Statement of changes in fund balance (p 20)

• Net change in fund balance: $11.9m

• Budget and actual helps summarize results (p 22)

• Use of prior year carryforwards and reserves: $30m

• Budgeted revenue positive variance: $26m

• Budgeted expenditures positive variance: $38m
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Financial Highlights

• Proprietary Funds Financial Statements (p 24-26)
o Sewer Enterprise (p 24)

 Liabilities: $25m
• Bonds payable: $13m
• Net OPEB liability: $5m
• Net pension liability: $4m

 Net position: $94m
• Net investment in capital assets: $76m
• Unrestricted: $19m

 Change in net position: $(800k)(p 25)
• Difference from PY results due to MWRA grants rec’d in 2023
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Financial Highlights

• Proprietary Funds Financial Statements (p 24-26)
o Water Enterprise (p 24)

 Liabilities: $41m
• Bonds payable: $28m
• Net OPEB liability: $6m
• Net pension liability: $4m

 Net position: $72m
• Net investment in capital assets: $63m
• Unrestricted: $9m

 Change in net position: $6m (p 25)
• Consistent with the prior year
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Financial Highlights

• Proprietary Funds Financial Statements (p 24-26)
o Stormwater Enterprise (p 24)

 Liabilities: $6m
• Bonds payable: $4m
• Net OPEB liability: $730k
• Net pension liability: $1m

 Net position: $12m
• Net investment in capital assets: $9m
• Unrestricted: $3m

 Change in net position: $1.2m (p 25)
• Consistent with the prior year
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Financial Highlights

• Proprietary Funds Financial Statements (p 24-26)
o Internal Service (Health/Workers Comp – p 24) 

 Liabilities: $24m
• IBNR Health Claims: $7m
• Workers Comp: $10m

 Net position: $19m
• Health: $11m (p 102)
• W/C: $8m (p 102)

 Change in net position: $5m – p 25
• Health Insurance net position is 1.7 months of claims (City target is 1.5-2.0 months)
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Financial Highlights

• Fiduciary Funds Financial Statements (p 27-28)
o SEE PAGES 77-78 FOR PENSION AND OPEB BREAKOUTS
o Pension Trust Fund

 Statement of Fiduciary Net position (p 77)
• Net position: $531m (primarily consisting of cash and investments)

 Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets (p 78)
• Change in net position: $57m increase; prior year decrease of $53m

• Net investment income: $51m increase; prior year decrease of $57m

 Net pension liability and related (GASB 67/68) discussed further in 
discussion of footnotes
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Financial Highlights

o OPEB Trust Fund
 Statement of Fiduciary Net position (p 77)

• Net position: $38m

 Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position (p 78)
• Change in net position: $7m

• City contribution: $27m
– Actual cash contributions - $4m
– GAAP accrual of “pay as you go” - $23m

• Investment income: $3.2m

 OPEB liability discussed further in discussion of footnotes



©
20

21
 C

lif
to

nL
ar

so
nA

lle
n 

LL
P

Significant Footnotes

• Note 11 - Long-term Debt (p 57-65)
o Total outstanding: $345m

 Governmental Funds: $300m (p 59)
 Water: $28m (p 61)
 Sewer: $13m (p 63)
 Stormwater: $4m (p 64)

o $32m of new debt issued:
 $30m – Governmental (p 59)
 $2m – Water (p 61)

o $12m of refunding debt issued (p 60)
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Significant Footnotes

• Note 14 – OPEB (p 66-70)
o The following is a summary of OPEB and related balances:

 Liability: $466m (p 67)
• $676m in the prior year

 Sensitivity of liability using +1%/-1% discount rate (p 70):
• -1%: $531m
• +1%: $412m

 Sensitivity of liability using +1%/-1% health care expense trend (p 70):
• -1%: $402m
• +1%: $545m
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Significant Footnotes

• Note 19 – Pension (p 73-77)
o The following is a summary of the City’s pension and related balances:

 Liability: $304m (p 74)
• $321m in prior year
• Decrease primarily due to investment performance

 Sensitivity of City share of liability using +1%/-1% discount rate (p 77):
• -1%: $398m
• +1%: $226m
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Management Letter
• Off-Leash Dog Licenses (New)

o No periodic reconciliation of licenses fees from City Hall Systems to the City’s MUNIS general 
ledger. 

o No periodic review of non-renewal data extracted from City Hall Systems
o No reconciliation to compare number of physical tags issued to the licensees issued in City Hall 

Systems
Recommendations:
o Reconcile licenses fees from City Hall Systems to MUNIS
o Compare pre-numbered tags on hand to licenses issued in City Hall Systems
o Perform analytical reviews such as:

 Customers who purchased in PY but not in the CY
 Licenses with non-renewals greater than 60 days.
 Data relationships such as renewal date of license to expiration of vaccinations.
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Management Letter

• Financial Close and Reporting (New)
o Health Insurance Fund

 $8.6M audit adjustment to correct posting employee contributions to the City’s health 
insurance internal service fund to employer contributions in the general ledger.

o Capital Assets
 Depreciation errors noted in capital assets database. 

Recommendations:
o Consider analytically reviewing trends year over year to determine anomalies as 

part of financial close process.
o Consider implementation of an automated system for tracking capital assets 

and depreciation.
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Management Letter

• Newton Community Education Program (New)
o Budget process does not consider all costs associated with program to 

determine proper class size and program charges necessary to break even.
 Management salaries, rent, indirect costs such as pension and OPEB assessments.

Recommendations: 
o Consider all costs associated with the program during annual budget
o Review indirect cost allocation
o Adjust pricing if necessary
o Reevaluate class size requirements
o Conduct periodic reviews of financial performance
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Management Letter

• General Ledger Integration of Police Details (Repeat)
o System used is not integrated with the City’s general ledger. 
Recommendation:
o Continue the process of MUNIS general billing and move forward with 

integration of police details when appropriate. 
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Management Letter

• Future GASB Implementation (Repeat)
o GASB 101 – Compensated Absences

 Liability recognized for leave time that is more likely than not to be used, 
paid, or otherwise settled

 In estimating “more likely than not”, a government should consider 
relevant factors such as employment policies related to compensated 
absences and historical information about the use or payment of 
compensated absences

Recommendation
o Continue preparing for implementation (FY 25)
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Next Meeting

• Suggested timing - April 2025

o Discuss FY 24 Single Audit results

o FY 25 audit planning
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Questions?
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COMPTROLLER’S OFFICE

CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
1000 COMMONWEALTH AVENUE
NEWTON CENTRE, MA 02459-1449

TELEPHONE (617) 796-1301
FAX (617) 796-1196

scurley@newtonma.gov

STEPHEN CURLEY
COMPTROLLER

___________, 2024
Members of the City Council
Mayor Ruthanne Fuller
Citizens and Taxpayers of the City of Newton, MA

I am pleased to transmit to you the City of Newton’s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2024. This report has been prepared by the Comptroller’s Office of the City in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as prescribed by the Government 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

The report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the City. Consequently, management 
assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all the information presented in this report. To 
provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, management has established a comprehensive internal 
control framework that is designed both to protect the assets of the City from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile 
sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the City’s financial statements in conformity with GAAP. 
Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City’s comprehensive framework of 
internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements 
will be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this 
financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

The City’s financial statements have been audited by CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP (CLA), a firm of licensed certified 
public accountants, who have been hired by and report to the Newton City Council. CLA will carry on as Newton’s 
independent auditor for the contract period from fiscal year 2024 through fiscal year 2028. The independent auditors’ 
unmodified (“clean”) opinion on the City’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2024 is presented as the 
first component of the financial section of this report.

The independent audit of the financial statements of the City was part of a broader, federally mandated “Single Audit” 
designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The standards governing Single Audit engagements 
require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the 
audited government’s internal controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal 
controls and legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards. These reports are available in the City’s 
separately issued Reports on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, Compliance and Federal Award Programs.
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GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic 
financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is 
designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City’s MD&A can be found 
immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

History and Profile

The City of Newton was settled in 1639 and incorporated as a City in 1873. The City is located approximately seven 
miles from downtown Boston and is bordered by the West Roxbury section of Boston on the southeast, the Town of 
Needham on the southwest, the Towns of Wellesley and Weston on the west, the City of Waltham and Town of 
Weston on the north; and the Town of Brookline and the Allston-Brighton sections of Boston on the east.

The City has an estimated total population of 88,415 and occupies a land area of 18.15 square miles. The City is 
principally suburban-residential in character and consists of 13 distinct villages – Auburndale; Chestnut Hill; Newton 
Centre; Newton Corner; Newton Highlands; Newton Lower Falls; Newton Upper Falls; Newtonville; Nonantum; 
Oak Hill; Thompsonville; Waban; and West Newton. Open space comprises 18.9% of the City’s total land area, of 
which 62% is publicly owned.

Newton has a diversified economic base with approximately 46,300 individuals employed in over 4,000 establishments 
within the boundaries of the City, with an estimated annual payroll in excess of $6 billion. Businesses are generally 
small and service-oriented with professional, business, education, and health services accounting for over 60% of all 
jobs.

Commercial uses occupy 4.2% of the City’s land area. Over 35% of commercial land parcels are office uses; 12% are 
small retail uses; and 5% are storage or warehouse uses. Only 0.6% of the City’s land area is industrial. Newton is a 
desirable community to live and work in due to its proximity to Boston; an excellent public school system; multiple 
transportation systems; attractive neighborhoods; high property values; and well managed local government. Newton 
has an award-winning public library and a City museum that was a stop on the Underground Railroad.

Organizational Structure

The City is governed under a home-rule charter, which vested executive authority and responsibility in an elected 
Mayor, who serves a four-year term. Legislative authority is vested in a 24-member City Council, of which eight 
members are elected from the City’s eight wards and sixteen are elected at large. Members of the City Council are 
elected every two years. An eight member School Committee is elected every two years and is responsible for 
appointing the Superintendent of Schools, who has responsibility for the daily administration of the Newton Public 
Schools.

Services

The City provides a complete range of municipal services including education, public safety, public works, recreation, 
library, cultural and health and human services. The Massachusetts Water Resources Authority provides public water 
supply and sewerage treatment services.
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Reporting Entity

The basic financial statements along with the combining statements and schedules included in this report relate to the 
activities under the direction and control of the Mayor, City Council and School Committee. The activities of the 
Newton Contributory Retirement System are included in this report as a blended component unit as prescribed by 
GAAP. The activities of the Newton Community Development Authority and Newton Commonwealth Foundation 
are discretely presented component units. The Newton Housing Authority is excluded from this report because it falls 
outside the direction and control of the Mayor and City Council.

Financial Management

The Mayor is responsible for the preparation of the City’s capital improvement plan; a multi-year financial forecast; 
and annually recommended capital and operating budgets. The City Council is responsible for review and approval of 
all appropriations recommended by the Mayor. An eight-member Finance Committee of the City Council oversees 
financial policy and a majority of the membership of the Finance Committee also serves on the Audit Subcommittee.

The City’s senior financial and administrative management team consists of the Chief Financial Officer; the Chief 
Operating Officer; the Treasurer/Collector and Chief Assessor who are appointed by the Mayor and approved by the 
City Council; and the Comptroller who is appointed by the City Council.

The City’s three-member Board of Assessors, appointed by the Mayor, is responsible for maintaining accurate real 
estate and personal property values. Property values are adjusted annually to capture changes in the local real estate 
market and to make certain the City’s assessed valuations are fair and accurate.

The Treasurer/Collector is responsible for revenue collections, cash and debt management, and the administration of 
parking violations. Real estate and personal property taxes are billed quarterly, thereby eliminating the need to borrow 
in anticipation of revenue. On-line transactions and a lock-box system are used for the majority of real estate, personal 
property, motor vehicle and utility cash collections.

The Comptroller is responsible for maintaining the City’s accounting records, and reporting the City’s financial 
activity and position. Detailed quarterly revenue and expenditure information is provided on-line to operating 
departments. Quarterly comparative financial management reports are issued to the Mayor, City Council and public 
on the Comptroller’s page of the City web site. Un-audited budgetary basis year-end financial reports are issued within 
90 days of the close of the fiscal year, and audited financial statements are issued shortly before or after the end of the 
calendar year. 

Financial Planning

Three on-going financial management challenges facing the City for the past several years have been the need to more 
aggressively fund the City’s defined benefit pension plan; the need to formalize a plan for actuarially funding the City’s 
Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) liability; and the need to fund general purpose budget reserves.

The City is currently on track to fund its defined benefit pension obligations in full by fiscal year 2032. The Plan’s Net 
Pension Liability decreased from $324.4 million as of December 31, 2022, to $308.3 million as of December 31, 2023.
The funded ratio, or the ratio of the actuarial value of assets to the actuarial accrued liability increased from 59.36% to 
63.27%. For fiscal year 2024, the appropriation increased by 6.6%.
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The OPEB trust ended fiscal year 2024 with assets of $38.4 million, $7.4 million or 24.1% greater than the funded 
balance on June 30 of the previous fiscal year. Although the City has yet to formally adopt a funding plan for its 
OPEB liabilities, the January 1, 2023 OPEB actuarial valuations include significant funding to begin in fiscal year 
2033, after the defined benefit plan is scheduled to be actuarially funded. Eight years later, by fiscal year 2039, the 
City’s OPEB obligations will reach full actuarial funding.

The City’s Rainy Day Stabilization Fund ended fiscal year 2024 with a fund balance of $26.0 million, $1.3 million more 
than the balance as of the start of the year and 5% of General Fund expenditures for the year. 

Accounting System and Budgetary Control

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal controls to:

 Properly safeguard assets.

 Provide reasonable assurance on the accuracy and reliability of the accounting records used in the preparation of
the basic financial statements.

 Provide reasonable assurance relative to compliance with legal and contractual constraints on the custody and use
of assets.

Departmental expenditure budgets are prepared and accounted for on a line-item basis. However, legally binding
appropriations are made for Personal Services, Expenses, Fringe Benefits, Debt Service and Capital Outlay. Line-item
transfers within an expenditure category may be made with the approval of the Department Head and Comptroller.
Transfers between expenditure categories require the approval of the Mayor and City Council.

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for expenditures are 
recorded to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is employed in the Governmental Funds to maintain 
budgetary control.

An analysis of all legally adopted operating and capital budgets are presented in the combining and individual fund 
statements and schedules section of this report.

The City’s books on fiscal year 2024 were closed within 90 days of year end and on October 1, 2024 the 
Massachusetts Department of Revenue certified the City’s July 1, 2024 free cash (General Fund balance available for 
appropriation) at $23.6 million. All statutory filings have also been made with the Massachusetts Department of 
Revenue and the Department of Elementary and Secondary Education.

Cash Management

Quarterly billing of real estate and personal property taxes coupled with timely water and sewer utility billing has 
eliminated the need to borrow in anticipation of revenue. Idle cash is invested by the Treasurer/Collector and 
governed by the Municipal Finance Laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.
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Note 22 – Commitments and Contingencies  
 
Significant commitments include the continuing appropriations and encumbrances outstanding for the general fund and CPA 
fund, for which outstanding balances at June 30, 2024, totaled $35,355,534 and $16,134,696, respectively. 
 
The City participates in a number of state and federal award programs. These programs are still subject to separate financial 
and compliance audits. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be 
determined at this time although it is expected such amounts, if any, will be immaterial.  
 
Various additional legal actions and claims are pending. Litigation is subject to many uncertainties and the outcome of 
individual litigated matters is not always predictable. Although the amount of liability, if any at June 30, 2024 cannot be 
ascertained, management believes any resulting liability should not materially affect the financial position of the City at June 
30, 2024. 
 
Note 23 – Changes Within the Financial Reporting Entity 
 
Changes in Fund Presentation from Nonmajor to Major 

The City implemented GASB Statement No. 101, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections ð an amendment of GASB Statement No. 
62 during fiscal year 2024. Both the Lincoln Eliot Construction and the New Center for Active Living Construction capital 
projects funds previously did not meet the criteria to be reported as a major governmental fund. However, effective July 1, 
2023, the funds met the criteria to be reported as major funds and are now reported as major governmental funds for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2024. The effects of the changes within the financial reporting entity are shown in the table below.  
 
 

Change
June 30, 2023, Within the
As Previously Financial June 30, 2023, 

Reported Reporting Entity As Restated
Governmental Funds:

Major Funds:
Lincoln Eliot Construction -$                   12,385,539$        12,385,539$    
New Center For Active Learning Construction -                     1,759,384           1,759,384       

Nonmajor Funds 51,506,399      (14,144,923)        37,361,476      
Total Governmental Funds 51,506,399$    -$                       51,506,399$    
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PENSION PLAN SCHEDULES 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN EMPLOYERS’ NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 
(SYSTEM) 

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Total pension liability

Service cost $ 18,056,672   $ 17,358,280  $ 15,606,428  $ 15,121,201  $ 14,914,124  
Interest 54,627,486  52,922,345  52,614,956  50,505,012  48,859,873  
Change in benefit terms 10,243,413  -  -  -  -  
Differences between expected and actual experience 2,159,845    1,896,693  (3,416,505)  7,695,347  1,843,627  
Changes of assumptions 5,382,351    - 20,989,758 37,295  -  
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (49,150,066)  (47,176,985)  (45,382,030) (44,100,796)  (42,165,467)  

Net change in total pension liability 41,319,701  25,000,333  40,412,607  29,258,059  23,452,157  

Total pension liability - beginning 798,221,054  773,220,721  732,808,114  703,550,055  680,097,898  

Total pension liability - ending (a) $ 839,540,755  $ 798,221,054  $ 773,220,721  $ 732,808,114  $ 703,550,055  

Plan fiduciary net position

Contributions - employer $ 43,543,143   $ 40,847,226   $ 37,269,367  $ 32,515,631  $ 31,793,327  
Contributions - member 12,366,419  11,085,517  11,357,250  11,415,653  10,671,799  
Net investment income 50,999,179   (56,820,968)  83,678,897  45,564,922  52,933,716  
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (49,150,066)  (47,176,985)  (45,382,030)  (44,100,796)  (42,165,467)  
Administrative expense (379,210)  (442,922)  (255,503)  (410,977)  (399,933)  
Other -  -  -  -  (2)  

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 57,379,465  (52,508,132)  86,667,981  44,984,433  52,833,440  

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 473,820,817  526,328,949  439,660,968  394,676,535  341,843,095  

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) $ 531,200,282  $ 473,820,817  $ 526,328,949  $ 439,660,968  $ 394,676,535  

Net pension liability - ending (a) - (b) $ 308,340,473  $ 324,400,237  $ 246,891,772  $ 293,147,146  $ 308,873,520  

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liabilityy 63.27% 59.36% 68.07% 60.00% 56.10%

Covered payroll $ 126,660,797  $ 116,871,238  $ 111,990,380  $ 107,216,124  $ 102,912,637  

Net pension liability as a percentage of covered payroll 243.44% 277.57% 220.46% 273.42% 300.13%  

DRAFT



CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS 
Required Supplementary Information 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2024 
 

    83
      

PENSION PLAN SCHEDULES (CONTINUED) 
 
 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN EMPLOYERS’ NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 
(SYSTEM) (CONTINUED) 

 
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Total pension liability

Service cost $ 14,270,532   $ 14,020,532   $ 12,238,508   $ 11,948,894   $ 10,445,973   
Interest 47,371,930   46,282,670   44,357,326   43,307,330   41,588,936   
Chagne in benefit terms -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Differences between expected and actual experience (445,198)       (3,594,215)    6,942,661     (3,992,229)    2,350,371     
Changes of assumptions -                   7,169,261     -                   -                   25,943,483   
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (40,469,534)  (40,367,473)  (37,883,262)  (36,652,624)  (35,872,446)  

Net change in total pension liability 20,727,730   23,510,775   25,655,233   14,611,371   44,456,317   

Total pension liability - beginning 659,370,168  635,859,393  610,204,160  595,592,789  551,136,472  

Total pension liability - ending (a) $ 680,097,898  $ 659,370,168  $ 635,859,393  $ 610,204,160  $ 595,592,789  

Plan fiduciary net position

Contributions - employer $ 28,628,399   $ 25,829,131   $ 23,566,725   $ 21,670,552   $ 19,972,859   
Contributions - member 10,065,686   9,457,254     9,282,992     8,842,379     8,661,238     
Net investment income (7,235,473)    50,390,107   20,972,368   2,146,925     20,748,803   
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (40,469,536)  (40,367,473)  (37,883,262)  (36,652,624)  (35,872,446)  
Administrative expense (325,392)       -                   -                   -                   -                   
Other -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Net change in plan fiduciary net position (9,336,316)    45,309,019   15,938,823   (3,992,768)    13,510,454   

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 351,179,411  305,870,392  289,931,569  293,924,337  280,413,883  

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) $ 341,843,095  $ 351,179,411  $ 305,870,392  $ 289,931,569  $ 293,924,337  

Net pension liability - ending (a) - (b) $ 338,254,803  $ 308,190,757  $ 329,989,001  $ 320,272,591  $ 301,668,452  

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 50.26% 53.26% 48.10% 47.51% 49.35%

Covered payroll $ 100,614,192  $ 96,567,809   $ 94,881,278   $ 92,136,867   $ 86,807,549   

Net pension liability as a percentage of covered payroll 336.19% 319.14% 347.79% 347.61% 347.51%
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PENSION PLAN SCHEDULES (CONTINUED) 
 
 

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS (SYSTEM)  
 

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Actuarially determined contribution $ 43,543,143   40,847,226   37,269,367   32,515,631   31,026,365   

Contributions in relation to the 
actuarially determined contribution 43,543,143   40,847,226   37,269,367   32,515,631   31,793,327   

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ -                   -                   -                   -                   (766,962)       

Covered payroll $ 126,660,797  116,871,238  111,990,380  107,216,124  102,912,637  

Contributions as a percentage of
covered payroll 34.38% 34.95% 33.28% 30.33% 30.89%

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Actuarially determined contribution $ 28,628,399   25,829,131   23,566,725   21,670,552   19,972,859   

Contributions in relation to the 
actuarially determined contribution 28,628,399   25,829,131   23,566,725   21,670,552   19,972,859   

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Covered payroll $ 100,614,192  96,567,809   94,881,278   92,136,867   86,807,549   

Contributions as a percentage of
covered payroll 28.45% 26.75% 24.84% 23.52% 23.01%  

 
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURNS (SYSTEM) 

 
Annual money-weighted

rate of return, net of
Year-Ended investment expense

2023 10.7%
2022 -10.8%
2021 19.1%
2020 11.6%
2019 15.6%
2018 -2.1%
2017 16.1%
2016 6.8%
2015 0.7%
2014 7.5%  
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PENSION PLAN SCHEDULES (CONTINUED) 
 
 

SCHEDULE OF CITY’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY (SYSTEM) 
 

2024* 2023* 2022* 2021* 2020*

City's proportion of the net pension liability 98.860852% 98.890194% 98.900864% 98.937366% 98.977308%
City's proportionate share of the net pension liability 304,828,019   320,800,024   244,178,096   290,032,065   305,714,695   
City's covered payroll 124,455,979   114,741,713   109,932,633   105,251,144   101,261,817   
City's proportionate share of net pension liability as percentage of covered payroll 244.93% 279.58% 222.12% 275.56% 301.91%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 63.27% 59.36% 68.07% 60.00% 56.10%

2019* 2018* 2017* 2016* 2015*

City's proportion of the net pension liability 98.979073% 99.008917% 98.993848% 99.000556% 99.026264%
City's proportionate share of the net pension liability 334,801,480   305,136,331   326,668,811   317,071,646   298,730,998   
City's covered payroll 98,995,159     95,190,276     93,926,628     90,939,864     85,643,310     
City's proportionate share of net pension liability as percentage of covered payroll 338.20% 320.55% 347.79% 348.66% 348.81%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 50.26% 53.26% 48.10% 47.51% 49.35%

*The amounts presented were determined as of December 31 of the previous calendar year.

 
 

SCHEDULE OF CITY’S CONTRIBUTIONS (SYSTEM) 
 

2024* 2023* 2022* 2021* 2020*

Actuarially Required Contribution 43,047,122$   40,393,901$   36,859,726$   32,170,109$   30,709,061$   
Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially Required Contribution 43,047,122     40,393,901     36,859,726     32,170,109     31,476,023     
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  (766,962)$      

City's Covered Payroll 124,455,979$ 114,741,713$ 109,932,633$ 105,251,144$ 101,261,817$ 

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 34.59% 35.20% 33.53% 30.57% 31.08%

2019* 2018* 2017* 2016* 2015*

Actuarially Required Contribution 28,336,124$   25,573,143$   23,329,608$   21,453,967$   19,778,376$   
Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially Required Contribution 28,336,124     25,573,143     23,329,608     21,453,967     19,778,376     
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  

City's Covered Payroll 98,995,159$   95,190,276$   93,926,628$   90,939,864$   85,643,310$   

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 28.62% 26.87% 24.84% 23.59% 23.09%

*The amounts presented were determined as of December 31 of the previous calendar year.
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PENSION PLAN SCHEDULES (CONTINUED) 
 
 

SCHEDULE OF CITY’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY (MTRS) 
 

2024* 2023* 2022* 2021* 2020*

City's proportion of the net pension liability 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
City's proportionate share of the net pension liability -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               
Commonwealth's proportionate share of the net pension liability
associated with the City 438,303,355   438,819,350   392,681,102   480,181,789   422,172,622   

Total 438,303,355$ 438,819,350$ 392,681,102$ 480,181,789$ 422,172,622$ 

City's covered payroll 143,950,840   139,520,592   134,128,101   127,456,450   121,845,437   
City's proportionate share of the net pension liability
as a percentage of its covered payroll N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 58.48% 57.75% 62.03% 50.67% 53.95%

2019* 2018* 2017* 2016* 2015*

City's proportion of the net pension liability 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
City's proportionate share of the net pension liability -                    -                    -$               -$               -$               
Commonwealth's proportionate share of the net pension liability
associated with the City 395,023,946   383,939,326   375,785,250   337,530,133   260,194,376   

Total 395,023,946   383,939,326   375,785,250$ 337,530,133$ 260,194,376$ 

City's covered payroll 116,999,122   113,921,033   110,555,252   104,421,833   100,361,397   
City's proportionate share of the net pension liability
as a percentage of its covered payroll N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 54.84% 54.25% 52.73% 55.38% 61.64%

*The amounts presented were determined as of June 30 of the previous calendar year.  
 

SCHEDULE OF CITY’S CONTRIBUTIONS (MTRS) 
 

2024* 2023* 2022* 2021* 2020*

Contractually required contribution $ -                    $ -                    $ -                    $ -                    $ -                    
Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ -                    $ -                    $ -                    $ -                    $ -                    

City's covered payroll $ 143,950,840   $ 139,520,592   $ 134,128,101   $ 127,456,450   $ 121,845,437   
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

2019* 2018* 2017* 2016* 2015*

Contractually required contribution $ -                    $ -                    $ -                    $ -                    -                    
Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

City's covered payroll $ 116,999,122   113,921,033   110,555,252   104,421,833   100,361,397   
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

*The amounts presented were determined as of June 30 of the previous calendar year.  
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OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS SCHEDULES 
 

The following schedule provides information related to the City’s other postemployment benefits plan: 
 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS (PLAN) (A) 
 

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Total OPEB liability

Service cost $ 25,760,473     $ 26,556,969     36,526,789     $ 34,943,621     $ 27,510,636     $ 23,978,991     $ 25,272,995     $ 30,190,353     
Interest 26,319,047     25,013,807     20,439,075     20,038,679     25,052,440     25,376,516     23,594,722     20,240,435     
Change in benefit terms (32,395,411)    -                     -                     -                     -                     4,486,261       -                     -                     
Differences between expected and actual experience (13,042,241)    -                     (57,982,759)    -                     61,934,673     (1,415,423)      -                     -                     
Changes of assumptions (186,099,554)  (12,359,342)    (204,565,623)  7,509,389       93,826,961     28,081,870     (28,013,342)    (76,049,934)    
Benefit payments (23,023,849)    (24,865,997)    (23,417,962)    (25,664,824)    (24,103,703)    (23,631,538)    (22,211,248)    (19,017,966)    

Net change in total OPEB liability (202,481,535)  14,345,437     (229,000,480)  36,826,865     184,221,007   56,876,677     (1,356,873)      (44,637,112)    

Total OPEB liability - beginning 706,718,057   692,372,620   921,373,100   884,546,235   700,325,228   643,448,551   644,805,424   689,442,536   

Total OPEB liability - ending (a) $ 504,236,522   $ 706,718,057   692,372,620   $ 921,373,100   $ 884,546,235   $ 700,325,228   $ 643,448,551   $ 644,805,424   

Plan fiduciary net position

Contributions - employer $ 27,291,917     $ 28,797,610     26,990,322     $ 28,884,619     $ 26,979,660     $ 26,148,831     $ 24,328,980     $ 20,872,070     
Net investment income 3,170,481       1,617,693       (1,087,129)      4,741,129       235,100          598,414          604,735          554,860          
Benefit payments (23,023,849)    (24,865,996)    (23,417,962)    (25,664,824)    (24,103,703)    (23,631,539)    (22,211,248)    (19,017,966)    

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 7,438,549       5,549,307       2,485,231       7,960,924       3,111,057       3,115,706       2,722,467       2,408,964       

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 30,923,390     25,374,083     22,888,852     14,927,928     11,816,871     8,701,165       5,978,698       3,569,734       

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) $ 38,361,939     $ 30,923,390     25,374,083     $ 22,888,852     $ 14,927,928     $ 11,816,871     $ 8,701,165       $ 5,978,698       

Net OPEB liability - ending (a) - (b) $ 465,874,583   $ 675,794,667   666,998,537   $ 898,484,248   $ 869,618,307   $ 688,508,357   $ 634,747,386   $ 638,826,726   

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability 7.61% 4.38% 3.66% 2.48% 1.69% 1.69% 1.35% 0.93%

Covered payroll $ 388,928,772   $ 360,219,993   333,630,353   $ 309,003,427   $ 286,194,338   $ 265,068,902   $ 245,502,840   $ 227,381,047   

Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered payroll 119.78% 187.61% 199.92% 290.77% 303.86% 259.75% 258.55% 280.95%

 
 

(A) – Data is accumulating annually to present 10 years of the reported information. DRAFT
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OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS SCHEDULES (CONTINUED) 

 
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS (PLAN) (A) 

 
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

Actuarially Required Contribution 37,498,080$   39,607,046$   37,797,960$   37,545,986$   35,930,738$   
Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially Required Contribution 27,291,917     28,797,610     26,990,322     28,884,619     26,979,660     
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) 10,206,163$   10,809,436$   10,807,638$   8,661,367$     8,951,078$     

City's Covered Payroll 388,928,772$  360,219,993$  333,630,353$  309,003,427$  286,194,338$  

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 7.02% 7.99% 8.09% 9.35% 9.43%

Actuarially Required Contribution 2019 2018 2017
Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially Required Contribution
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) 35,614,447$   33,900,292$   55,094,130$   

26,148,831     24,328,980     20,872,070     
City's Covered Payroll 9,465,616$     9,571,312$     34,222,060$   

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 265,068,902$  245,502,840$  227,381,047$  

9.86% 9.91% 9.18%  
 
 

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURNS (PLAN) (A) 
 

Annual money-weighted
rate of return, net of

Year-Ended investment expense
2024 9.65%
2023 5.96%
2022 -4.43%
2021 29.02%
2020 1.79%
2019 6.14%
2018 9.00%
2017 15.93%  

 
(A) – Data is accumulating annually to present 10 years of the reported information.  
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Note A – Methods and Assumptions Used in Calculations of Actuarially Determined Contributions (Pension Plan) 
 
The actuarially determined contribution rates in the schedules of contributions are calculated as of January 1, one year prior to 
the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported. The following actuarial methods and assumptions were used to 
determine contribution rates reported in those schedules: 
 
Actuarial cost method (2013-2023):   Entry Age Normal 
 
Amortization method (2013):    Payment increases 8.50% per year 
Amortization method (2014):    Payment increases 8.75% per year 
Amortization method (2015-2023)  Payment increases 9.60% per year 
 
Remaining amortization period (2013):  15 years    
Remaining amortization period (2014):  14 years 
Remaining amortization period (2015-2016): 13 years 
Remaining amortization period (2017):  12 years 
Remaining amortization period (2018):  11 years 
Remaining amortization period (2019):  10 years 
Remaining amortization period (2020):   9 years  
Remaining amortization period (2021):   8 years  
Remaining amortization period (2022):   7 years  
Remaining amortization period (2023):            8 years 
 
Asset valuation method (2013-2023): Sum of actuarial value at beginning of year, contributions and investment 

earnings based on actuarial interest assumption less benefit payments plus 
25% of the market value at the end of the year in excess of that sum, plus 
additional adjustment toward market value as necessary so that final 
actuarial value is within 20% of market value 

 
Inflation (2013):     2.0 – 2.5% 
Inflation (2014-2017):    2.5% 
Inflation (2018-2023):    2.75% 
 
Salary increases (2013):    3.0 – 3.5% 
Salary increases (2014-2016):   3.5% 
Salary increases (2017-2023):   3.5 – 8.0% 
 
Investment rate of return (2013-2015):  7.35% 
Investment rate of return (2016):   7.50% 
Investment rate of return (2017-2020):  7.25% 
Investment rate of return (2021-2023):  6.90% 
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Note B – Methods and Assumptions Used in Calculations of Actuarially Determined Contributions (OPEB Plan) 
 
The actuarially determined contribution rates in the schedules of contributions are calculated as of June 30, one year prior to 
the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported. The following actuarial methods and assumptions were used to 
determine contribution rates reported in those schedules: 

 
Actuarial cost method (2017-2024):   Entry Age Normal 
 
Amortization method (2017-2019):  Level dollar 
Amortization method (2020-2024):  Level percentage of payroll 
 
Remaining amortization period (2017-2019): 30 years 
Remaining amortization period (2020):  28 years 
Remaining amortization period (2021):  27 years 
Remaining amortization period (2022):  26 years 
Remaining amortization period (2023):  25 years 
Remaining amortization period (2024):           24 years 
 
 
Interest discount rate (2017-2018):  2.06%  
Interest discount rate (2019):   3.50% 
Interest discount rate (2020):   2.21% 
Interest discount rate (2021):   2.16% 
Interest discount rate (2022):   3.54% 
Interest discount rate (2023):   3.65% 
Interest discount rate (2024):                              6.00% 
 
 
Healthcare/Medical cost trend rate (2017-2018): 8.39% in 2016 graded down to 6.08% in 2021 and thereafter. 
Healthcare/Medical cost trend rate (2019): 7.00% decreasing by 0.25% for 10 years to an ultimate level of 4.50% 
Healthcare/Medical cost trend rate (2020-2024): 7.50% decreasing by 0.25% for 12 years to an ultimate level of 4.50% 
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
 
 
Special Revenue Funds 
 
School Lunch Fund: 
This fund is used to account for the operations of the Newton Public School Department’s student lunch program. Revenues 
are generated from the sale of lunches, state and federal reimbursement grants, and investment income. A formal budget is not 
adopted for this fund; however, expenditures cannot exceed revenues plus the beginning fund balance. Any difference 
between fund revenues and expenditures is financed with a transfer from the School Department’s general fund operating 
budget. It is the policy of the Newton Public school department to subsidize all fund employee benefit costs. 
 
Revolving Fund 
The Revolving Fund is used to account for a variety of municipal functions that are expected to be self- supporting, such as 
departmental private duty details. All revolving funds, except for damage recoveries of less than $20,000; private duty details 
and assignments; wetlands protection and development review activities; and police asset forfeitures are authorized annually by 
vote of the City Council under Massachusetts General Law Chapter 44, Section 53E ½.  Fund expenditures are limited to the 
lesser of actual available resources or the annual spending limit authorized by the City Council. 
 
Receipts Reserved Fund 
This fund is used to account for a variety of local revenues whose use is either legally restricted by state law, or has been 
restricted by vote of the City’s City Council, for specific purposes and can only be spent with the prior appropriation of the 
City Council. The fund is used to account for proceeds from the sale of surplus real estate, parking meter receipts, 
development mitigation funds, and revenues generated from cable television license agreements and the sale of recyclable 
materials. No expenditures can be made directly from the fund; rather, resources are appropriated and transferred to the City’s 
general fund for expenditure. 
 
Affordable Housing Trust Fund 
This fund is used to account for activities of the City’s affordable housing program. Funding for the Trust primarily comes 
from the City’s Community Preservation Act Funds.  
 
Community Development Block Grant Fund 
This fund is used to account for activities undertaken with federal Community Development Block Grant funds. The Mayor 
and City Council approve each year’s grant budget. This is a reimbursement grant. 
 
Municipal Federal Grant Fund 
This fund is used to account for a variety of categorical municipal federal grants. The City Council approve annual grant 
budgets and grant budget obligations are generally limited to the lesser of actual available resources or the annual spending 
limit authorized by the Council. 
 
Municipal State Grant Fund 
This fund is used to account for municipal state grants. The City Council approve annual grant budgets and grant budget 
obligations are limited to the lesser of actual available resources or the annual spending limit authorized by the Council. 
 
School State Grant Fund 
This fund is used to account for all categorical public education state grants. The School Committee approves annual grant 
budgets and grant budget s are recorded upon receipt of approved grant agreements. 
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School Federal Grant Fund 
This fund is used to account for all public education federal grants. The School Committee approves annual grant budgets and 
grant budgets are recorded upon receipt of approved grant agreements. 
 
Gift Fund 
This fund is used to account for private gifts and donations that are unrelated to any other fund. Expenditures are limited to 
the lesser of actual available resources or the annual spending limit authorized by the City Council and School Committee. 
 
Capital Projects Funds 
 
Public Building Improvements Fund 
This fund is used to account for the acquisition, construction, reconstruction, and/or major renovation of buildings (and 
related fields and facilities) other than school-related projects. Financing is generally derived from the issuance of bonds or 
notes. City Council appropriations are for the term of the projects. The Public Building Commissioner is responsible for all 
projects accounted for in this fund. A separate sub-fund is maintained within the fund for each major capital project. 
 
School Building Improvements Fund 
This fund is used to account for the acquisition, construction, reconstruction, and/or major renovation of school-related 
buildings (and related fields and facilities). Financing is generally derived from the issuance of bonds or notes. City Council 
appropriations are for the term of the project. The Public Building Commissioner is responsible for all projects accounted for 
in this fund. A separate sub-fund is maintained within the fund for each major capital project. 
 
Street Improvements Fund 
This fund is used to account for the revenues and expenditures of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Chapter 90 highway 
construction grant funds and state construction grant for certain road and intersection improvements. Grant budgets are 
recorded based upon annual grant awards from the Commonwealth, City Council authorization of annual spending authority, 
and approval of specific construction projects by the Massachusetts Highway Department. Chapter 90 highway construction 
grants are paid to the City on a reimbursement basis. The City finances grant expenditures internally until reimbursements are 
received from the Commonwealth. Grant revenue is recognized when approved expenditures are incurred and submitted to 
the Commonwealth for reimbursement.  
 
Municipal Equipment Replacement Fund 
This fund is used to account for the acquisition of public safety and public works motor equipment, financed with the issuance 
of debt. 
 
Permanent Funds 
 
Municipal Fund 
This fund is used to account for a variety of municipal purposes. A detailed report may be obtained from the Comptroller’s 
Office. 
 
Library Common Fund 
This fund is used to account for the purchase of library supplies and materials and the enhancement of public library services 
in Newton. The Newton Library Board of Trustees maintains custody of fund assets.
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Affordable Community
School Receipts Housing Development
Lunch Revolving Reserved Trust Block Grant

Cash and cash equivalents………………………………………………………………………………………………….$ -                 $ -                    $ 5,134,577        $ -                   $ -                    
Interest and dividends……..……………………………………………………………………………………………… -                  -                    -                  -                   -                    
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:

Special assessments………………………………...……………………………………………………………………….. -                  184,082              -                   -                    -                    
Departmental and other………………………………………………………………………………………….……………………………………………………………………………………………. -                  1,190,918           -                   -                    -                    
Opiod settlements………………………………..……………………………………………………………………….. -                  1,537,724           -                   -                    -                    
Intergovernmental………………………………………………………………………………………………….……………………………………………………………………………………………. 114,810           10,782                -                   -                    105,251             

Other assets………………………………………………………………………………………………………….……………………………………………………………………………………………. -                  -                     -                   -                    -                    
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents……………………………………………………………………………………………. 2,873,177       14,140,348        1,062,442        4,030,824         598,565             
Investments…………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. -                  -                     -                   -                    -                    

TOTAL ASSETS……………………………………………………………………………………………………$ 2,987,987       $ 17,063,854        $ 6,197,019        $ 4,030,824         $ 703,816             

Accounts payable……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….$ 1,633              $ 193,450             $ -                  $ -                   $ -                    
Accrued liabilities…………………………………………………………………………………………………..……………………………………………………………………………………………. -                  72,981                -                   -                    80                     
Accrued payroll……………………………………………………………………………………………………….……………………………………………………………………………………………. -                  309,366              -                   -                    8,974                
Other liabilities………………………………………………………………………………..……………………………………………………………………………………………. 191,927           -                     -                   -                    19,398               
Due to other funds…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. -                 866,809             -                  -                   -                    

     
TOTAL LIABILITIES……………………………………………………………………………………………….…………………………………………………………………………………………….  193,560            1,442,606            -                    -                     28,452               

Unavailable revenue……………………………………….………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. -                  1,502,891           -                   -                    -                    

FUND BALANCES      
Nonspendable………………………………………………………………………………..…………………………………………………………………………………………….. -                  -                     -                   -                    -                    
Restricted………………………………………………………………………………..……………………………………………………………………………………………. 2,794,427        14,118,357        1,062,442        4,030,824         675,364             
Committed………………………………………………………………………………..……………………………………………………………………………………………. -                  -                    5,134,577        -                   -                    

     
TOTAL FUND BALANCES………………………………………………………………………………………..……………………………………………………………………………………………. 2,794,427        14,118,357         6,197,019         4,030,824          675,364             

     
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF

RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….$ 2,987,987       $ 17,063,854        $ 6,197,019        $ 4,030,824         $ 703,816             

ASSETS

LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2023

Special Revenue Funds
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Municipal Municipal School School
Federal Grant State Grant State Grant Federal Grant Gift Sub-total

$ -                    $ -                     $ -                $ -                    $ -                $ 5,134,577         
-                    -                     -                -                    -                -                   

 -                     -                     -                 -                     -                 184,082            
 -                     -                     -                 -                     -                 1,190,918         
 -                     -                     -                 -                     -                 1,537,724         
 1,505,564           976,140              3,066,659       2,684,338           -                 8,463,544         
 -                     -                     -                 -                     -                 -                   

155,861             2,124,135           3,351,944      24,346               1,659,228      30,020,870       
 -                     -                     -                 -                     -                 -                   

$ 1,661,425          $ 3,100,275           $ 6,418,603      $ 2,708,684          $ 1,659,228      $ 46,531,715       

$ 2,800                 $ 168,446              $ 10,411           $ 350,961             $ 1,354             $ 729,055            
 -                     40,130                8,869              139                    1,259              123,458            
 -                     22,713                83,680            72,321                4,870              501,924            
 17,441                -                     -                 -                     -                 228,766            

1,439,892          699,288              1,286,942      2,197,578          -                 6,490,509         
     

  1,460,133            930,577              1,389,902        2,620,999            7,483               8,073,712         

 -                     -                     -                 -                     -                 1,502,891         

     
 -                     -                     -                 -                     -                 -                   

201,292             2,169,698           5,028,701      87,685               1,651,745       31,820,535       
-                    -                     -                -                    -                 5,134,577         

     
 201,292              2,169,698           5,028,701       87,685                1,651,745       36,955,112       
     

$ 1,661,425          $ 3,100,275           $ 6,418,603      $ 2,708,684          $ 1,659,228      $ 46,531,715       

Special Revenue Funds

94

DRAFT



Public School Municipal
Building Building Street Equipment

Improvements Improvements Improvements Replacement Sub-total

Cash and cash equivalents………………………………………………………………………………………………….…………………………………………………………………………………………….$ -                     $ -                     $ -                     $ -                 $ -                      
Interest and dividends……..……………………………………………………………………………………………… -                      -                     -                     -                 -                      
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:

Special assessments………………………………………….………………………………………………………………………..……………………………………………………………………………………………. -                      -                     -                     -                 -                      
Departmental and other…………………………………………………………………..……………………………………………………………………………………………. -                      -                     -                     -                 -                      
Opiod settlements………………………………..……………………………………………………………………….. -                      -                     -                     -                 -                      
Intergovernmental…………………………………………………………………………………..……………………………………………………………………………………………. -                      -                     1,358,510           -                 1,358,510            

Other assets……………………………………………………………………………………….……………………………………………………………………………………………. -                      -                     -                     -                 -                      
Restricted assets:   

Cash and cash equivalents……………………………………………………………………. 1,964,278            2,441,029           788,982              1,996,257       7,190,546            
Investments…………………………………………………………………………………………… -                      -                     -                     -                 -                      

TOTAL ASSETS……………………………………………………………………………………..…………………………………………………………………………………………….$ 1,964,278           $ 2,441,029           $ 2,147,492           $ 1,996,257       $ 8,549,056            

Accounts payable………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….$ -                     $ 420,849              $ 394,372              $ -                 $ 815,221               
Accrued liabilities…………………………………………………………………………………………….……………………………………………………………………………………………. -                      -                     533,774              -                 533,774               
Accrued payroll………………………………………………………………………………………..……………………………………………………………………………………………. -                      -                     -                     -                 -                      
Other liabilities………………………………………………………………………………………..……………………………………………………………………………………………. -                      -                     -                     -                 -                      
Due to other funds……………………………………………………………………………………..……………………………………………………………………………………………. -                      -                     369,044              -                 369,044               

  
TOTAL LIABILITIES……………………………………………………………………………………….……………………………………………………………………………………………. -                      420,849              1,297,190           -                 1,718,039            

Unavailable revenue……………………………………….………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. -                      -                     -                     -                 -                      

FUND BALANCES:
Nonspendable………………………………………………………………………………..……………………………………………………………………………………………. -                      -                     -                     -                 -                      
Restricted………………………………………………………………………………..……………………………………………………………………………………………. 1,964,278            2,020,180           850,302              1,996,257       6,831,017            
Committed………………………………………………………………………………..……………………………………………………………………………………………. -                      -                     -                     -                 -                      

  
TOTAL FUND BALANCES…………………………………………………………………………….……………………………………………………………………………………………. 1,964,278            2,020,180           850,302              1,996,257       6,831,017            

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….$ 1,964,278           $ 2,441,029           $ 2,147,492           $ 1,996,257       $ 8,549,056            

ASSETS

LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2023
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Total
Nonmajor

Library Governmental
Municipal Common Sub-total Funds

$ -                 $ -                 $ -                $ 5,134,577             
569                 -                 569               569                       

-                 -                 -                184,082                
-                 -                 -                1,190,918             
-                 -                 -                1,537,724             
-                 -                 -                9,822,054             

30,000            -                 30,000           30,000                  

244,859          396,669          641,528         37,852,944            
353,558          1,780,861       2,134,419      2,134,419             

$ 628,986          $ 2,177,530       $ 2,806,516      $ 57,887,287            

$ -                 $ -                 $ -                $ 1,544,276             
-                 -                 -                657,232                
-                 -                 -                501,924                
-                 -                 -                228,766                

9,677              -                 9,677             6,869,230             

9,677              -                 9,677             9,801,428             

-                 -                 -                1,502,891             

366,932          -                 366,932         366,932                
252,377          2,177,530       2,429,907      41,081,459            

-                 -                 -                5,134,577             

619,309          2,177,530       2,796,839      46,582,968            

$ 628,986          $ 2,177,530       $ 2,806,516      $ 57,887,287            

Permanent Funds
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Affordable Community
School Receipts Housing Development
Lunch Revolving Reserved Trust Block Grant

REVENUES
Licenses and permits………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………$ -                 $ 210,064              $ 1,653,669           231,297          $ -                   
Intergovernmental …………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 4,635,868        21,319                115,785              -                  2,081,831         
Charges for services………………………………………………………………………………………………..………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 463,870           21,030,961          -                     -                  -                   
Fines and forfeitures………………………………………………………………………………………………..………………………………………………………………………………………………………… -                  11,413                169,665              -                  -                   
Investment income …………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 117,679           275,411               1,211                  -                  -                   
Contributions and donations……………………………………………………………………………………………… -                  132,375               132,000              -                  -                   
Miscellaneous………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. -                  821,668               132,122              -                  -                   
Settlement Proceeds……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. -                  616,899               -                     -                  -                   
Special assessments…………………………………………………………………………………………………….………………………………………………………………………………………………………… -                  321,250               -                     -                  -                   

     
TOTAL REVENUES………………………………………………………………………………………..………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 5,217,417       23,441,360          2,204,452            231,297           2,081,831         

     
EXPENDITURES     

Current:
General government:

Legislative & executive………………………………………………………………………………………..………………………………………………………………………………………………………… -                 8,224                 -                    -                 -                   
Administrative support…………………………………………………………………………………… -                 -                     -                    -                 -                   
Planning & development………………………………………………………………………………….………………………………………………………………………………………………………… -                 220,675              -                    115,648          1,708,292         
Public building maintenance & operations…………………………………………………………………………. -                 23,251               -                    -                 -                   

Public safety:  
Police…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..………………………………………………………………………………………………………… -                 6,444,441           -                    -                 -                   
Fire……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….………………………………………………………………………………………………………… -                 1,259,505           -                    -                 -                   
Inspectional services……………………………………………………………………………………….…………………………………………………………………………………………………………  -                 4,159                 -                    -                 -                   

Education……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 4,085,646       10,766,031         -                    -                 -                   
Public works:  

Streets & sidewalks………………………………………………………………………………………………….. -                 84,077               -                    -                 -                   
Sanitation……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. -                 -                     -                    -                 -                   
Engineering……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… -                 667,209              -                    -                 -                   

Health and human services:  
Health & human services………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. -                 105,813              -                    -                 -                   
Senior services……………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. -                 37,683               -                    -                 -                   
Veteran services…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. -                 -                     -                    -                 -                   

Culture and recreation:  
Libraries………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… -                 566,181              -                    -                 -                   
Parks & recreation……………………………………………………………………………………………………………. -                 2,702,387           -                    -                 -                   
Newton History museum…………………………………………………………………………………………………………. -                 1,040                 -                    -                 -                   

     
TOTAL EXPENDITURES………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 4,085,646       22,890,676          -                     115,648           1,708,292         

    
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES     

OVER EXPENDITURES………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 1,131,771       550,684               2,204,452            115,649           373,539            
    

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)      
Transfers in………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….………………………………………………………………………………………………………… -                 1,863,542           -                    1,967,119       -                   
Issuance of general obligation bonds………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… -                 -                     -                    -                 -                   
Premium from issuance of bonds and notes……………………………………….. -                 -                     -                    -                 -                   
Proceeds of refunding bonds……………………………………………..………………………..………………..………………………………………………………………………………………………………… -                 -                     -                    -                 -                   
Premium from issuance of refunding bonds…………………………..………………………..……………….. -                 -                     -                    -                 -                   
Transfers out………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… -                 -                     (1,624,164)          -                 -                   
Payments to refunding bond escrow agent…………………………….………………………………………………………………………………………………………… -                 -                     -                    -                 -                   

     
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. -                 1,863,542            (1,624,164)           1,967,119        -                   

    
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 1,131,771       2,414,226            580,288              2,082,768        373,539            

     
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING, AS ORIGINALLY REPORTED………………………………………………………………………………… 1,662,656        11,704,131          5,616,731            1,948,056        301,825            

 
ADJUSTMENT…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… -                 -                     -                    -                 -                   

 
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING, AS ADJUSTED……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 1,662,656        11,704,131          5,616,731            1,948,056        301,825            

     
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………$ 2,794,427       $ 14,118,357         $ 6,197,019           $ 4,030,824       $ 675,364            

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Special Revenue Funds

CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
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Municipal Municipal School School
Federal Grant State Grant State Grant Federal Grant Gift Sub-total

$ -                    $ -                   $ -                  $ -                    $ -                    $ 2,095,030           
 3,281,395           3,686,101          10,320,028       6,911,007           -                     31,053,334          
 -                     -                    -                   -                     174,142              21,668,973          
 -                     -                    -                   -                     -                     181,078              
 -                     257                   -                   -                     6,351                  400,909              
 -                     -                    -                   -                     620,564              884,939              
 -                     -                    -                   -                     -                     953,790              
 -                     -                    -                   -                     -                     616,899              
    -                    -                   -                     -                     321,250              
      
 3,281,395           3,686,358          10,320,028       6,911,007           801,057              58,176,202          
      
      

 -                    41,530             -                  -                    3,627                 53,381                
 -                    70,068             -                  -                    -                    70,068                
 1,665,545          634,131            -                  -                    -                    4,344,291           
 -                    206,265            -                  -                    -                    229,516              
 
 188,096             379,095            -                  -                    3,597                 7,015,229           
 318,583             95,612             -                  -                    638                    1,674,338           

  -                    -                   -                  -                    -                    4,159                  
 -                    -                   8,905,967        6,939,671 284,550             30,981,865          
 
 -                    -                   -                  -                    -                    84,077                
 -                    19,995             -                  -                    -                    19,995                
 -                    179,596            -                  -                    -                    846,805              
 
 13,658              157,045            -                  -                    2,404                 278,920              
 -                    426,959            -                  -                    -                    464,642              
 -                    -                   -                  -                    7,190                 7,190                  
 
 -                    44,747             -                  -                    -                    610,928              
 -                    959,848            -                  -                    453,256             4,115,491           
 -                    12,500             -                  -                    -                    13,540                
      
 2,185,882           3,227,391          8,905,967         6,939,671           755,262              50,814,435          
      
      
 1,095,513           458,967             1,414,061         (28,664)              45,795                7,361,767           
      
      
 844,770             -                   -                  -                    -                    4,675,431           
 -                    -                   -                  -                    -                    -                     
 -                    -                   -                  -                    -                    -                     
 -                    -                   -                  -                    -                    -                     
 -                    -                   -                  -                    -                    -                     
 -                    -                   -                  -                    -                    (1,624,164)          
 -                    -                   -                  -                    -                    -                     
      
 844,770              -                    -                   -                     -                     3,051,267           
      
 1,940,283           458,967             1,414,061         (28,664)              45,795                10,413,034          
      
 (1,738,991)         1,710,731         3,614,640        116,349             1,605,950           26,542,078          

-                    -                   -                  -                    -                    -                     

 (1,738,991)         1,710,731         3,614,640        116,349             1,605,950           26,542,078          
      
$ 201,292             $ 2,169,698         $ 5,028,701        $ 87,685              $ 1,651,745           $ 36,955,112          

(Continued)

Special Revenue Funds
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Public School Municipal
Building Building Street Equipment

Improvements Improvements Improvements Replacement Sub-total
REVENUES

Licenses and permits………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………$ -                           $ -                           $ -                           $ -                      $ -                    
Intergovernmental …………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. -                            234,059                     2,443,107                 -                       2,677,166           
Charges for services………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. -                            -                            -                           -                       -                    
Fines and forfeitures………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… -                            -                            -                           -                       -                    
Investment income (loss)…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. -                            -                            -                           -                       -                    
Contributions and donations…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… -                            -                            -                           -                       -                    
Miscellaneous………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. -                            -                            -                           -                       -                    
Settlement Proceeds……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. -                            -                            -                           -                       -                    
Special assessments……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. -                            -                            -                           -                       -                    

    
TOTAL REVENUES……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. -                            234,059                     2,443,107                 -                       2,677,166           

    
EXPENDITURES     

Current:
General government:

Legislative & executive……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… -                            -                           -                           -                      -                    
Administrative support…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. -                            -                           -                           -                      -                    
Planning & development………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… -                            -                           -                           -                      -                    
Public building maintenance & operations……………………………………………………………………………………………. 947,781                     -                           -                           -                      947,781             

Public safety:   
Police……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. -                            -                           -                           258,390               258,390             
Fire……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. -                            -                           -                           343,341               343,341             
Inspectional services………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………  -                             -                           -                           -                      -                    

Education…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… -                            5,582,924                 -                           -                      5,582,924           
Public works:   

Streets & sidewalks………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. -                            -                           613,957                    1,690                  615,647             
Sanitation………………………………………………………………………………………………… -                            -                           -                           -                      -                    
Engineering………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. -                            -                           2,333,132                 1,260,401            3,593,533           

Health and human services:   
Health & human services………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. -                            -                           -                           -                      -                    
Senior services…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… -                            -                           -                           -                      -                    
Veteran services…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. -                            -                           -                           -                      -                    

Culture and recreation:   
Libraries…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. -                            -                           -                           -                      -                    
Parks & recreation……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. -                            -                           -                           -                      -                    
Newton History museum……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… -                            -                           -                           -                      -                    

    
TOTAL EXPENDITURES……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 947,781                     5,582,924                  2,947,089                 1,863,822             11,341,616         

    
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES     

OVER EXPENDITURES……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. (947,781)                    (5,348,865)                 (503,982)                   (1,863,822)            (8,664,450)          
    

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)     
Transfers in……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 1,191,000                  1,160,684                 -                           1,000,000            3,351,684           
Issuance of general obligation bonds……………………………………………………………………………………………………………… -                            4,899,000                 -                           -                      4,899,000           
Premium from issuance of bonds and notes……………………………………….. -                            251,000                    -                           -                      251,000             
Proceeds of refunding bonds……………………………………………..………………………..………………..………………………..……………….. -                            12,052,500               -                           -                      12,052,500         
Premium from issuance of refunding bonds…………………………..………………..………………………..……………….. -                            1,120,057                 -                           -                      1,120,057           
Transfers out………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. (330,853)                    (736,693)                   (139,172)                   (101,969)             (1,308,687)          
Payments to refunding bond escrow agent…………………………….………………………..……………….. -                            (13,190,534)              -                           -                      (13,190,534)        

    
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)………………………………………………………………………………… 860,147                     5,556,014                  (139,172)                   898,031                7,175,020           

    
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… (87,634)                     207,149                     (643,154)                   (965,791)              (1,489,430)          

    
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING, AS ORIGINALLY REPORTED………………………………………………………………………………… 3,811,296                  14,198,570               1,493,456                 2,962,048            22,465,370         

 
ADJUSTMENT…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… (1,759,384)                (12,385,539)              -                           -                      (14,144,923)        

 
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING, AS ADJUSTED……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 2,051,912                  1,813,031                 1,493,456                 2,962,048            8,320,447           

    
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………$ 1,964,278                 $ 2,020,180                 $ 850,302                    $ 1,996,257            $ 6,831,017           

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
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Total
Nonmajor

Library Governmental
Municipal Common Sub-total Funds

$ -                    $ -                 $ -                $ 2,095,030             
 -                     -                 -                33,730,500           
 -                     -                 -                21,668,973           
 -                     -                 -                181,078                
 54,528                151,885          206,413         607,322                
 -                     424,905          424,905         1,309,844             
 -                     -                 -                953,790                
 -                     -                 -                616,899                
 -                     -                 -                321,250                
  
 54,528                576,790          631,318         61,484,686           
  
  

 -                    -                 -                53,381                  
 -                    -                 -                70,068                  
 -                    -                 -                4,344,291             
 -                    -                 -                1,177,297             
 
 -                    -                 -                7,273,619             
 -                    -                 -                2,017,679             

  -                    -                 -                4,159                    
 -                    -                 -                36,564,789           
 
 -                    -                 -                699,724                
 -                    -                 -                19,995                  
 -                    -                 -                4,440,338             
 
 -                    -                 -                278,920                
 -                    -                 -                464,642                
 -                    -                 -                7,190                    
 
 -                    328,071          328,071         938,999                
 5,359                 -                 5,359            4,120,850             
 -                    -                 -                13,540                  
  
 5,359                  328,071          333,430         62,489,481           
  
  
 49,169                248,719          297,888         (1,004,795)            
  
  
 -                    -                 -                8,027,115             
 -                    -                 -                4,899,000             
 -                    -                 -                251,000                
 -                    -                 -                12,052,500           
 -                    -                 -                1,120,057             
 -                    -                 -                (2,932,851)            
 -                    -                 -                (13,190,534)          
  
 -                     -                 -                10,226,287           
  
 49,169                248,719          297,888         9,221,492             
  
 570,140             1,928,811       2,498,951      51,506,399           

-                    -                 -                (14,144,923)          

 570,140             1,928,811       2,498,951      37,361,476           
  
$ 619,309             $ 2,177,530       $ 2,796,839      $ 46,582,968           

(Concluded)

Permanent Funds
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Internal Service Funds 
 
 
Health Insurance Fund 
This fund is used to account for group health benefits for active and retired employees of the City. The City funds 70%/75% 
of group health benefits, and employees contribute 25%/30% of the cost through payroll deductions.  The City maintains 
separate sub-funds for plans administered by Blue Cross Blue Shield. 
 
Workers’ Compensation Insurance Fund 
This fund is used to account for workers’ compensation benefits, replacement wages and medical benefits for qualified 
employees. The fund is also used to account for the cost of providing medical benefits to public safety employees who are 
injured in the line of duty. Replacement wages for public safety employees are accounted for in the General Fund operating 
budgets of the police and fire departments. 
 
Liability Insurance Fund 
This fund is used to accumulate resources to pay liability claims in excess of $50,000. Liability claims of $l5,000 or more are 
financed from a judgment and settlement appropriation in the City’s Solicitor’s General Fund annual appropriation.  Claims 
greater than $5,000, but less than $50,000 are financed with a transfer from the Reserve Fund annual appropriation in the 
General Fund. 
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Workers'

Health Compensation Liability
Insurance Insurance Insurance Total

Current assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents…………………………………………………………………….$ 21,300,222           $ 203,039                $ 5,007              $ 21,508,268           
Restricted investments…………………………………………………………………………………………. -                      19,998,866           -                 19,998,866           
Interest and dividends……..………………………………………………………………………….. -                      30,075                 -                 30,075                 
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:

Departmental and other………………………………………………………………….. 1,924                   -                       -                 1,924                   
Working capital deposit………………………………………………………………………. 1,078,824             -                       -                 1,078,824             

Total current assets………………………………………………………………………………… 22,380,970           20,231,980           5,007              42,617,957           

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable…………………………………………………………………………………. 2,251,895             164,741                -                 2,416,636             
Accrued liabilities…………………………………………………… -                      49,773                 -                 49,773                 
Accrued payroll…………………………………………………………………………………….. -                      52,489                 -                 52,489                 
Other liabilities…………………………………………………………………………………… 2,670,637             -                       -                 2,670,637             
Due to other funds…………………………………………………………………………………………….. -                      1,315,897             -                 1,315,897             
Accrued health claims payable………………………………………………………………. 7,007,862             -                       -                 7,007,862             
Workers' compensation claims……………………………………………………………….. -                      1,800,000             -                 1,800,000             

Total current liabilities………………………………………………………………………… 11,930,394           3,382,900             -                 15,313,294           

Noncurrent liabilities:
Workers' compensation claims……………………………………………………………….. -                      8,550,409             -                 8,550,409             

Total liabilities……………………………………………………………………………………..  11,930,394           11,933,309           -                 23,863,703           
 

FUND NET POSITION  
Unrestricted……………………………………………………………………………………………………$ 10,450,576 $ 8,298,671 $ 5,007 $ 18,754,254           

LIABILITIES

CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION

June 30, 2024

ASSETS
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Workers'
Health Compensation Liability

Insurance Insurance Insurance Total
OPERATING REVENUES

Employer contributions……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..$ 63,908,239       $ 1,900,000               $ -                 $ 65,808,239       
Plan member contributions…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 16,228,220        -                         -                 16,228,220       

  
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES…………………………………………. 80,136,459        1,900,000               -                 82,036,459       

  
OPERATING EXPENSES   

Self insurance claims……………………………………………………………..……………………………………………………………….. 75,130,033       1,836,695               -                 76,966,728       
Administrative expenses…………………………………………………………………………………..……………………………………………………………….. 3,164,539         558,711                 -                 3,723,250         

  
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES…………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 78,294,572        2,395,406               -                 80,689,978       

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 1,841,887          (495,406)                -                 1,346,481         
  

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)   
Investment income………………………………………………………………….……………………………………………………………….. 1,064,571         2,697,435               256                3,762,262         

  
CHANGE IN FUND NET POSITION…………………………………………………………………………………………….. 2,906,458          2,202,029               256                5,108,743         

  
FUND NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR…………………………………………………………………………………………….. 7,544,118         6,096,642               4,751             13,645,511       

FUND NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR……………………………………………………………………………………………..$ 10,450,576       $ 8,298,671               $ 5,007             $ 18,754,254       
.

CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
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Workers'
Health Compensation Liability

Insurance Insurance Insurance Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from customers and users…………………………………………………………………………………………$ 16,228,220                $ -                            $ -                            $ 16,228,220             
Receipts from interfund services provided……………………………………………………………………………. 63,943,211                1,900,000                  -                            65,843,211             
Payments to vendors/providers………………………………………………………………………………………… (76,144,696)               (2,785,364)                 -                            (78,930,060)            

 
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES…………………………….………………………………………………… 4,026,735                  (885,364)                    -                            3,141,371               

 
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Advances from Other Funds………………………………………………………………………………………. -                            874,875                     -                            874,875                  
 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  
Purchases of investments……………………………………………………………………………. -                            -                            -                            (5,084,208)              
Sale of investments……………………………………………………………………………. -                            (2,594,345)                 -                            2,489,863               
Investment income…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 1,064,572                  2,686,646                  256                            3,751,474               

 
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES……………………………………………………… 1,064,572                  92,301                       256                            1,157,129               

 
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS……………………..……………………………………………………… 5,091,307                  81,812                       256                            5,173,375               

 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR……………………………………………………………………………. 16,208,915                121,227                     4,751                         16,334,893             

 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR…………………………………………………………………………….$ 21,300,222                $ 203,039                     $ 5,007                         $ 21,508,268             

 
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH  

FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating income (loss)…………………………………………………………………………………………………$ 1,841,887                  $ (495,406)                    $ -                            $ 1,346,481               
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net  

cash from operating activities:  
Changes in assets and liabilities:  

Departmental and other…………………………………………………………………………….……………………………………………………………….. 34,972                       -                            -                            34,972                    
Working capital deposit……………………………………………………….…………………………………… (326,731)                    -                            -                            (326,731)                 
Accounts payable……………………………………………………………………………………………………… 2,127,407                  1,625                         -                            2,129,032               
Accrued payroll………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. -                            (8,784)                        -                            (8,784)                     
Other liabilities…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 57,579                       -                            -                            57,579                    
Accrued liabilities…………………………………………………………………………………………… -                            7,873                         -                            7,873                      
Accrued health claims payable…………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 291,621                     -                            -                            291,621                  
Workers' compensation………………………………………………………………………………………………….. -                            (390,672)                    -                            (390,672)                 

Total adjustments……………………………………………………………………………………………. 2,184,848                  (389,958)                    -                            1,794,890               

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES…………………………….…………………………………………………$ 4,026,735                  $ (885,364)                    $ -                            $ 3,141,371               

CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
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Private Purpose Trust Funds 
 
Chaffin Education Fund 
This fund is used to account for higher education loans and grants issued to Newton high school graduates who are unable to 
afford the cost of college education. Revenues consist primarily of investment income on fund cash and investments. 
 
Scovell Education Fund 
This fund is used to account for prizes and awards to students for distinguished scholarships awarded at Newton high schools. 
The prizes are subject to approval of the School Committee. Revenues consist primarily of investment income on fund cash 
and investments. 
 
Cousens Welfare Fund 
This fund is used to account for loans and or grants to Newton residents who qualify as poor. At least 90% of the annual 
income of the fund is to be distributed to the deserving poor and not more than 20% of this sum may be loaned to individuals 
who are temporarily in financial need. Revenues consist primarily of investment income on fund cash and investments. 
 
Newton North High School Scholarship Fund 
This fund is used to account for Newton North High School scholarship funds. Detailed fund information is available from 
the City Comptroller’s Office. 
 
Kendrick Welfare Fund 
This fund is used to account for distributions to needy industrious poor of Newton, especially widows and orphans. 
 
Read Charity Fund 
This fund is used to account for the perpetual maintenance of the donor’s grave site, an annual sleigh ride or picnic for the 
children of the Newton Corner section of Newton, free lectures on scientific subjects in Newton Corner, library book 
purchases, and assistance to poor widows of the City. Revenues consist primarily of investment income on fund cash and 
investments. 
 
Spear Infirmary Fund 
The terms of the gift of this fund calls for the income to be used to “…provide cheer for the inmates of the City farm.” The 
fund has been inactive for a number of years. 
 
Mabel Riley Senior Fund 
The terms of the gift of this fund calls for the income to be used for “…special treats for residents of nursing homes and 
homes for the elderly on holidays and for comforts for the sick throughout the year.” 
 
Elderly Tax Relief Fund 
The City has accepted Massachusetts General Law Chapter 60, Section 3D, which authorizes the implementation of a 
voluntary tax check-off program for purposes of defraying real estate taxes for elderly and disabled Newton taxpayers with low  
incomes. This fund is used to account for the receipt of voluntary donations and awards voted by the Taxation Aid  
Committee. 
 
Marjorie Moerschner Fund 
The terms of the gift of this fund calls for the income to be used for “…the purpose of providing aid to the poor and needy 
inhabitants of the City of Newton as its Mayor shall from time to time determine.” 
 

DRAFT



Chaffin Scovell Cousens Newton North High
Education Education Welfare School Scholarship

Cash and cash equivalents…………………………………………………………………….…………………………………….$ 338,440         $ 12,607              $ 37,869              $ 1,044,595                   
Investments:  

Fixed Income………………………………………………………………………..……………………………………. 1,758,229       930,442             1,219,009          382,252                     
Equities…………………………………………………………………………………..……………………………………. 5,134,679       1,044,143          1,611,341          415,440                     

Interest and dividends……..…………………………………………………………………………..……………………………………. 16,799           4,386                9,259                1,775                         
 

Total assets…………………………………………………………………………………………..……………………………………. 7,248,147       1,991,578          2,877,478          1,844,062                   
 

Accrued liabilities……………………………………………………………. -                 -                    -                    3,001                         
Due to other funds………………………………………………………………………………………………… 6,030             47,500              136,990             13,156                       

 
Total liabilities…………………………………………………………………………………….. 6,030             47,500              136,990             16,157                       

 
NET POSITION  

Assets held in trust for other purposes.……………………………………………………………………………………………………$ 7,242,117 $ 1,944,078 $ 2,740,488 $ 1,827,905

ASSETS

LIABILITIES

CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

June 30, 2024
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Kendrick Read Spear Mabel Riley Elderly Marjorie Moerschner
Welfare Charity Infirmary Senior Tax Relief Fund Total

$ 3,586          $ 49,821          $ 5,379           $ 43,877            $ 29,098         $ 3,337                  $ 1,568,609        

-             -               -               -                 -              45,487                4,335,419        
-             -               -               -                 -              62,235                8,267,838        
-             -               -               -                  -              147                     32,366            

 
3,586          49,821          5,379           43,877             29,098         111,206               14,204,232      

 

-             -               -               -                 -              -                      3,001              
-             -               -               -                 -              -                      203,676           

 
-                 -                   -                   -                      -                  -                          206,677           

 
 

$ 3,586 $ 49,821 $ 5,379 $ 43,877 $ 29,098 $ 111,206               $ 13,997,555      
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Chaffin Scovell Cousens Newton North High
Education Education Welfare School Scholarship

ADDITIONS
Contributions:

Private donations…………………………………………………………………………………………………………….$ 339,210           $ -                  $ 2,169           $ 149,297                        
    

Net investment income:     
Net appreciation in fair value of investments……………………………………………………………………………. 846,127           214,462           258,797        114,617                        

    
TOTAL ADDITIONS……………………………………………………………………………….. 1,185,337          214,462            260,966         263,914                        

    
DEDUCTIONS     

Administration expense………….……………………………………………………………………………………. -                  -                  495              4,000                           
Educational scholarships & awards………………………………………………………………………………………….. 275,630           47,500             137,079        144,627                        

    
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS…………………………………………………………………………………. 275,630            47,500              137,574         148,627                        

    
CHANGE IN NET POSITION…………………………………………………………………………………………. 909,707            166,962            123,392         115,287                        

NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR…………………………………………………………………………………. 6,332,410         1,777,116         2,617,096     1,712,618                     

NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR……………………………………………………………………………………$ 7,242,117         $ 1,944,078         $ 2,740,488     $ 1,827,905                     

CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
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Kendrick Read Spear Mabel Riley Elderly Marjorie Moerschner
Welfare Charity Infirmary Senior Tax Relief Fund Total

$ -           $ -           $ -            $ -               $ 1,995          $ -                     $ 492,671          
     
     

183           2,549        275           2,244            1,451          10,112                 1,450,817       
     
 183            2,549         275            2,244            3,446          10,112                 1,943,488       
     
     

-           -           -            -               -             -                      4,495             
-           -           -            -               -             -                      604,836          

     
 -            -            -             -               -             -                      609,331          
     
 183            2,549         275            2,244            3,446          10,112                 1,334,157       

3,403        47,272      5,104        41,633          25,652        101,094               12,663,398     

$ 3,586        $ 49,821      $ 5,379        $ 43,877          $ 29,098        $ 111,206              $ 13,997,555     

109

DRAFT



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page left intentionally blank. 

       

DRAFT



 

    110 

General Fund 
 

 
This is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the government, except those required to be 
accounted for in another fund. 
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Encumbrances/
 Continued FY 2024 FY 2024
 Appropriations Original Budget Budget Revisions

City Clerk/Clerk of the Board
Personal Services $ -                       $ 1,663,241             5,000                      
Expenses 57,702                  230,350                15,000                    
Capital Outlay 261,169                -                       
Fringe Benefits -                       427,116                17,642                    

   Total City Clerk/Clerk of the Board 318,871                2,320,707             37,642                    

Executive
Personal Services -                       995,247                -                          
Expenses 558,325                245,816                400,000                   
Fringe Benefits -                       124,965                42,466                    
Total Executive 558,325                1,366,028             442,466                   

Comptroller's Office/Property Insurance/Audit
Personal Services -                       601,707                -                          
Expenses 131,249                934,295                -                          
 Fringe Benefits -                       100,642                8,451                      
       Total Comptroller's Office/Property Insurance 131,249                1,636,644             8,451                      

Purchasing/General Services
Personal Services -                       441,904                -                          
Expenses 2,343                    63,560                  -                          
Fringe Benefits -                       95,290                  3,062                      

  Total Purchasing/General Services 2,343                    600,754                3,062                      

Assessing Department
Personal Services -                       1,136,305             -                          
Expenses 9,206                    57,100                  -                          
Fringe Benefits -                        161,667                2,532                      
      Total Assessing Department 9,206                    1,355,072             2,532                      

Treasury & Collection Department
Personal Services -                       804,146                -                          
Expenses 116,099                 367,640                286,622                   
Fringe Benefits -                       158,676                6,043                      

   Total Treasury & Collection Department 116,099                1,330,462             292,665                   

City Solicitor/Judgments & Settlements
Personal Services -                       1,562,470             (125,000)                 
Expenses 330,341                294,925                737,135                   
Fringe Benefits -                       307,338                (29,058)                   

   Total City Solicitor's Office/Settlements  330,341                 2,164,733              583,077                   

CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS OUT
BUDGET TO ACTUAL - LEGAL LEVEL OF CONTROL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

111

DRAFT



Encumbrances/
FY 2024 Budget Total  Revised   Expenditures and Continued Closed to

As Amended FY 2024 Budget  Transfers Appropriations Fund Balance

$ 1,668,241             $ 1,668,241                     $ 1,668,172                  $ $ 69                    
245,350                303,052                        256,418                    46,160                   474                  

-                       261,169                        232,500                    28,669                   -                  
444,758                444,758                        444,758                    -                  

2,358,349             2,677,220                     2,601,848                  74,829                   543                  
  
  

995,247                995,247                        986,388                    -                        8,859               
645,816                1,204,141                     626,639                    577,498                 4                     
167,431                167,431                        167,431                    -                        -                  

1,808,494             2,366,819                     1,780,458                  577,498                 8,863               
   
   

601,707                601,707                        601,535                    -                        172                  
934,295                1,065,544                     883,484                    180,021                 2,039               
109,093                109,093                        109,093                    -                        -                  

1,645,095             1,776,344                     1,594,112                  180,021                 2,211               
   
   

441,904                441,904                        441,868                    -                        36                    
63,560                  65,903                          39,946                      2,578                     23,379             
98,352                  98,352                          98,352                      -                        -                  

603,816                606,159                        580,166                    2,578                     23,415             
   
   

1,136,305             1,136,305                     1,081,988                  -                        54,317             
57,100                  66,306                          41,413                      12,628                   12,265             

164,199                164,199                        164,199                    -                        -                  
1,357,604             1,366,810                     1,287,600                  12,628                   66,582             

   
   

804,146                804,146                        784,564                    -                        19,582             
654,262                770,361                        708,976                    58,694                   2,691               
164,719                164,719                        164,719                    -                        -                  

1,623,127             1,739,226                     1,658,259                  58,694                   22,273             
   
   

1,437,470             1,437,470                     1,407,348                  -                        30,122             
1,032,060             1,362,401                     918,865                    442,361                 1,175               

278,280                278,280                        278,280                    -                        -                  
2,747,810              3,078,151                      2,604,493                   442,361                  31,297             

   
(Continued)

112

DRAFT



Encumbrances/
Continued FY 2024 FY 2024

Appropriations Original Budget Budget Revisions
Human Resources Department

Personal Services  -                       754,746                
Expenses 60,495                  277,550                
Fringe Benefits -                       171,041                24,907                    
      Total Human Resources Department  60,495                   1,203,337              24,907                    

Financial Services
Personal Services -                       637,547                
Expenses 110,646                36,900                  
Fringe Benefits -                       104,290                (25,566)                   
  Total Financial Services 110,646                778,737                (25,566)                   

 
Information Technology Department

Personal Services  -                       1,260,251             
Expenses 8,115                    929,817                
Capital Outlay 16,288                  100,000                500,000                   
Fringe Benefits -                       208,194                3,898                      
      Total Information Technology Department 24,403                  2,498,262             503,898                   

Planning & Development Department  
Personal Services -                       2,047,145             -                          
Expenses 202,872                300,000                -                          
Capital Outlay 63,939                  -                       -                          
Fringe Benefits -                       295,909                 (34,560)                   
       Total Planning & Development Department 266,811                2,643,054             (34,560)                   

Public Building Department  
Personal Services -                       3,080,292             -                          
Expenses 74,970                  2,291,034             -                          
Capital Outlay 18,673                  250,000                (250,000)                 
Fringe Benefits -                       592,083                (5,718)                     
      Total Public Building Department 93,643                  6,213,409             (255,718)                 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT TOTAL 2,022,432             24,111,199            1,582,856               

Police Department
Personal Services -                       21,457,961           450,000                   
Expenses 39,040                  1,061,420             -                          
Capital Outlay 326,724                406,000                -                          
Fringe Benefits -                       3,149,848             185,009                   
      Total Police Department  365,764                 26,075,229            635,009                   

CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS OUT
BUDGET TO ACTUAL - LEGAL LEVEL OF CONTROL (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
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Encumbrances/
FY 2024 Budget Total  Revised   Expenditures and Continued Closed to

As Amended FY 2024 Budget  Transfers Appropriations Fund Balance
   

754,746                 754,746                         743,017                    -                         11,729             
277,550                338,045                        301,006                    35,552                   1,487               
195,948                195,948                        151,160                    44,788                   -                  

 1,228,244              1,288,739                      1,195,183                   80,340                    13,216             

637,547                637,547                        510,690                    126,857           
36,900                  147,546                        30,592                      116,954                 -                  
78,724                  78,724                          78,724                      -                  

753,171                863,817                        620,006                    116,954                 126,857           

   
   

 1,260,251              1,260,251                      1,195,192                   65,059             
929,817                937,932                        936,496                    626                        810                  
600,000                616,288                        116,531                    499,757                 -                  
212,092                212,092                        212,092                    -                        -                  

3,002,160             3,026,563                     2,460,311                  500,383                 65,869             

   
   

2,047,145             2,047,145                     1,957,981                  -                        89,164             
300,000                502,872                        293,199                    200,966                 8,707               

-                       63,939                          41,930                      22,009                   -                  
261,349                261,349                        261,349                    -                        -                  

2,608,494             2,875,305                     2,554,459                  222,975                 97,871             
   
   

3,080,292             3,080,292                     2,979,235                  -                        101,057           
2,291,034             2,366,004                     2,154,313                  202,857                 8,834               

-                       18,673                          9,000                        9,673                     -                  
586,365                586,365                        586,365                    -                        -                  

5,957,691             6,051,334                     5,728,913                  212,530                 109,891           
   
   

25,694,055          27,716,487                   24,665,808               2,481,791               568,888           
  
  

21,907,961           21,907,961                   21,643,990                -                        263,971           
1,061,420             1,100,460                     1,020,040                  80,420                   -                  

406,000                732,724                        732,724                    -                        -                  
3,334,857             3,334,857                     3,334,880                  -                        (23)                  

26,710,238            27,076,002                    26,731,634                 80,420                    263,948           

  (Continued)
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Encumbrances/
Continued FY 2024 FY 2024

Appropriations Original Budget Budget Revisions
Fire Department

Personal Services  -                       24,117,781           1,350,000                
Expenses 29,005                  1,133,025             -                          
Capital Outlay 504,373                105,000                -                          
Fringe Benefits -                       3,835,239             295,222                   
      Total Fire Department  533,378                 29,191,045            1,645,222                

Inspectional Services Department
Personal Services  -                       1,724,138             -                          
Expenses -                       49,800                  -                          
Fringe Benefits -                       297,708                (6,152)                     
      Total Inspectional Services Department -                       2,071,646             (6,152)                     

PUBLIC SAFETY TOTAL 899,142                57,337,920          2,274,079               

NEWTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS 813,282                266,966,163         (50,750)                  

Public Works Department
Personal Services -                       11,615,719           (800,000)                 
Expenses 6,641,918             18,328,518           (200,000)                 
Capital Outlay 690,537                400,000                -                          
Fringe Benefits -                       2,127,700             (156,070)                 
  Total Public Works Department 7,332,455             32,471,937           (1,156,070)               

PUBLIC WORKS TOTAL  7,332,455              32,471,937            (1,156,070)              

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS OUT
BUDGET TO ACTUAL - LEGAL LEVEL OF CONTROL (CONTINUED)
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Encumbrances/
FY 2024 Budget Total  Revised   Expenditures and Continued Closed to

As Amended FY 2024 Budget  Transfers Appropriations Fund Balance
  

25,467,781            25,467,781                    25,109,881                -                         357,900           
1,133,025             1,162,030                     1,159,790                  1,000                     1,240               

105,000                609,373                        76,483                      532,890                 -                  
4,130,461             4,130,461                     4,130,461                  -                        -                  

 30,836,267            31,369,645                    30,476,615                 533,890                  359,140           

   
 1,724,138              1,724,138                      1,619,231                   104,907           

49,800                  49,800                          43,643                      6,157               
291,556                291,556                        291,556                    -                        -                  

2,065,494             2,065,494                     1,954,430                  -                        111,064           

  
59,611,999           60,511,141                    59,162,679                614,310                 734,152           

 

266,915,413         267,728,695                 265,844,923             1,883,469              303                 

  
  

10,815,719           10,815,719                   10,423,602                -                        392,117           
18,128,518           24,770,436                   21,171,306                3,599,130               -                  

400,000                1,090,537                     604,413                    486,124                 -                  
1,971,630             1,971,630                     1,971,630                  -                        -                  

31,315,867           38,648,322                   34,170,951                4,085,254               392,117           
  
  

31,315,867            38,648,322                    34,170,951                 4,085,254               392,117           
  
  (Continued)
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Encumbrances/
Continued FY 2024 FY 2024

Appropriations Original Budget Budget Revisions
Health & Human Services Department

Personal Services  -                       3,649,389             (190,000)                 
Expenses 126,957                851,942                215,000                   
Fringe Benefits -                       691,087                6,821                      
      Total Public Health Department 126,957                5,192,418             31,821                    

Senior Services Department
Personal Services -                       353,438                -                          
Expenses -                       368,600                -                          
Fringe Benefits -                       124,730                (65,498)                   
      Total Human Services Department  -                        846,768                 (65,498)                   

Veteran Services Department
Personal Services  -                       88,663                  -                          
Expenses 35,000                  112,650                -                          
Fringe Benefits -                       1,291                   (6)                           
      Total Veteran Services Department 35,000                  202,604                (6)                           

HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES TOTAL 161,957                6,241,790             (33,683)                  

Newton Public Library
Personal Services -                       4,327,695             (225,000)                 
Expenses 14,000                  1,254,136             125,000                   
Fringe Benefits -                       807,935                (44,854)                   
      Total Newton Public Library 14,000                  6,389,766             (144,854)                 

Parks & Recreation Department
Personal Services -                       4,097,332             
Expenses 492,977                3,341,815             -                          
Capital Outlay 188,677                150,000                -                          
Fringe Benefits -                       822,191                (7,909)                     
      Total Parks & Recreation Department 681,654                8,411,338             (7,909)                     

Newton History Museum
Personal Services -                       269,254                -                          
Expenses -                       28,770                  -                          
Fringe Benefits -                       25,829                  (8,964)                     
      Total Newton History Museum -                       323,853                (8,964)                     

CULTURE & RECREATION TOTAL  695,654                 15,124,957            (161,727)                 

CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
GENERAL FUND

BUDGET TO ACTUAL - LEGAL LEVEL OF CONTROL (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS OUT
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Encumbrances/
FY 2024 Budget Total  Revised   Expenditures and Continued Closed to

As Amended FY 2024 Budget  Transfers Appropriations Fund Balance
  

3,459,389              3,459,389                      3,416,475                  -                         42,914             
1,066,942             1,193,899                     1,124,218                  68,097                   1,584               

697,908                697,908                        697,908                    -                        -                  
5,224,239             5,351,196                     5,238,601                  68,097                   44,498             

  
  

353,438                353,438                        328,067                    -                        25,371             
368,600                368,600                        368,593                    -                        7                     
59,232                  59,232                          59,232                      -                        -                  

 781,270                 781,270                         755,892                     -                         25,378             
  
  

 88,663                   88,663                           88,663                      -                         -                  
112,650                147,650                        78,971                      35,200                   33,479             

1,285                   1,285                            1,285                        -                        -                  
202,598                237,598                        168,919                    35,200                   33,479             

  
  

6,208,107             6,370,064                     6,163,412                  103,297                 103,355           
  
  
  

4,102,695             4,102,695                     4,095,482                  -                        7,213               
1,379,136             1,393,136                     1,287,576                  105,560                 -                  

763,081                763,081                        763,081                    -                        -                  
6,244,912             6,258,912                     6,146,139                  105,560                 7,213               

  
  

4,097,332             4,097,332                     3,924,985                  -                        172,347           
3,341,815             3,834,792                     3,355,221                  479,294                 277                  

150,000                338,677                        122,027                    216,649                 1                     
814,282                814,282                        814,282                    -                        -                  

8,403,429             9,085,083                     8,216,515                  695,943                 172,625           
  
  

269,254                269,254                        217,178                    -                        52,076             
28,770                  28,770                          28,770                      -                        -                  
16,865                  16,865                          16,865                      -                        -                  

314,889                314,889                        262,813                    -                        52,076             

14,963,230            15,658,884                    14,625,467                 801,503                  231,914           
   
  (Continued)
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Encumbrances/
Continued FY 2024 FY 2024

Appropriations Original Budget Budget Revisions
DEBT SERVICE (PRINCIPAL & INTEREST)

Debt Service -                       25,264,715           802,979                   
  Total Debt & Interest -                       25,264,715           802,979                   

RETIREMENT 
Fringe Benefits -                       58,182,289           (3,738,236)               
      Total Retirement  -                        58,182,289            (3,738,236)               

APPROPRIATED RESERVES     
Wage & Salary Reserve  -                       1,597,790             -                          
Reserve Fund (Budget Reserve) -                       500,000                (490,000)                 
Reserve Fund (Snow & Ice) -                       1,500,000             (1,500,000)               
      Total Budgetary Reserves -                       3,597,790             (1,990,000)               

STATE & COUNTY ASSESSMENTS -                       6,761,514             6,991                      

SPECIAL APPROPRIATIONS 18,349,928            -                       15,355,347              

  TOTAL EXPENDITURES  30,274,850             496,060,274         12,891,786              

TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS:
Workers Comp Self Insurance Fund - Muni  -                       800,000                50,000                    
Workers Comp Self Insurance Fund - School -                       400,000                -                          
School Athletic Revolving Fund - School -                       1,259,250             80,750                    
School Lunch Fund -                       30,000                  (30,000)                   
Health Insurance Transfer -                       -                       3,526,538                
School Improvement Fund (LE) -                       1,160,684             -                          
NPS Stabilization Fund -                       -                       22,000,000              
Capital Equipment Fund -                       -                       1,000,000                
Opioid Mitigation Fund -                       -                       446,105                   
Capital Building Improvement -                       -                       8,991,000                
      Total Transfers to Other Funds -                       3,649,934             36,064,393              

TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS $ 30,274,850           $ 499,710,208         $ 48,956,179              

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS OUT
BUDGET TO ACTUAL - LEGAL LEVEL OF CONTROL (CONTINUED)
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Encumbrances/
FY 2024 Budget Total  Revised   Expenditures and Continued Closed to

As Amended FY 2024 Budget  Transfers Appropriations Fund Balance
  

26,067,694           26,067,694                   25,264,712                802,979                 3                     
26,067,694           26,067,694                   25,264,712                802,979                 3                     

  
  

54,444,053           54,444,053                   54,039,527                -                        404,526           
 54,444,053            54,444,053                    54,039,527                 -                         404,526           

  
  

  
 1,597,790              1,597,790                      -                           1,597,790                -                  

10,000                  10,000                          -                           -                        10,000             
-                       -                               -                           -                        -                  

1,607,790             1,607,790                     -                           1,597,790               10,000             

6,768,505             6,768,505                     7,035,664                  -                        (267,159)          

   
15,355,347           33,705,275                   10,657,186                22,985,141             62,948             

  
508,952,060          539,226,910                   501,630,329               35,355,534              2,241,047         

 
 
  

850,000                 850,000                         850,000                    -                         -                  
400,000                400,000                        400,000                    -                        -                  

1,340,000             1,340,000                     1,340,000                  -                  
-                       -                               -                           -                        -                  

3,526,538             3,526,538                     3,526,538                  -                        -                  
1,160,684             1,160,684                     1,160,684                  -                        -                  

22,000,000           22,000,000                   22,000,000                -                        -                  
1,000,000             1,000,000                     1,000,000                  -                        -                  

446,105                446,105                        446,105                    -                        -                  
8,991,000             8,991,000                     8,991,000                  -                        -                  

39,714,327           39,714,327                   39,714,327                -                        -                  
  
  
  

548,666,387         $ 578,941,237                 $ 541,344,656              $ 35,355,534            $ 2,241,047        

(Concluded)
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Community Preservation Fund 
 

 
This fund accounts for the 1% local property tax surcharge that the voters of the City approved in November of 2001 for 
open space, historic resource and affordable housing purposes. The Commonwealth of Massachusetts currently matches local 
surcharge revenue on a dollar for dollar basis. 
 
The City Council has appropriation authority over all community preservation funds; however, all appropriation 
recommendations must originate with the nine member community preservation committee. 
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Encumbrances/
Continued Current Year Original Budget

Appropriations Appropriations Budget Revisions

Administration & operations:
Planning $ -                         $ 182,907              $ 182,907          $ -                  
Transfers to various reserves -                         1,818,921           1,818,921       1,405,085        

Total - Administration & operations -                         2,001,828           2,001,828       1,405,085        

CPA appropriation reserve -                        3,618,514           3,618,514       (1,405,085)       

Open space:
Open space reserve -                    562,034         562,034          (562,034)         
Webster Woods Land Acquisition -                    132,819         132,819          562,034          
300 Hammond Pond Parkway/Webster Woods 112                   -                112                -                  
Webster Woods Legal Services 510,525             -                510,525          -                  
Webster Woods- Newton Conservators 15,000               -                15,000            -                  
Kessler Woods- Newton Conservators 15,000               -                15,000            -             

Total - Open space projects 540,637                 694,853              1,235,490       -                  

Historic resources:
Historic preservation reserve -                    562,034         562,034          
East Parish Burial Ground Restoration 44,246               -                44,246            -                  
Whipple-Beal Fence Project (Newton Cemetery) 1,800                 -                1,800              -                  
Jackson Homestead Fence 26,790               -                26,790            -                  
Grace Church Tower Restoration 216,486             -                216,486          -                  
Newton Architectural Survey 5,950                 -                5,950              -                  
Church of the Open Word Study 9,460                 -                9,460              -                  
Newton Community Farm Rehab 11,896               -                11,896            -                  
Jackson Homestead Basement Reno-Phase I 73,400               -                73,400            -                  
Second Church in Newton 125,000         125,000          -                  

Total - Historic preservation 390,028                 687,034              1,077,062       -                  

Community housing:
Community Housing Reserve -                    562,034         562,034          (562,034)         
CPA Housing Transfers -                    -                -                 562,034          
Crescent Street Design - Housing 4,412                 -                4,412              -                  
Haywood House Jackson Rd 307,990             -                307,990          -                  
Scanton Ave/Golda Meir Expansion 449,486             -                449,486          -                  
Newton Homebuyer's Preservation 616,998             -                616,998          -                  
Coleman House Senior Housing 421,462             -                421,462          -                  
West Newton Armory Housing 3,000,000          -                3,000,000       -                  
Nonantum Senior Housing Preservation 80,817               -                80,817            -                  

Total - community housing  4,881,165                562,034               5,443,199        -                  

Community recreation:
Crescent Street Design - playground 167,134             -                167,134          -                  
Pigeon Hill Trail 46,262               -                46,262            -                  
Commonwealth Ave Carriageway -                    -                -                 -                  
Gath Pool Feasibility Study 1,000                 -                1,000              -                  
Levingston Cove Construction 580,242             -                580,242          -                  
Athletic Fields CIP Design 270,458             -                270,458          -                  
Comm Ave Carriageway Design 31,413               -                31,413       -             
Gath Pool Reno Phase II 415,900             -                415,900     -             
Gath Pool Reno Phase III 5,834,362          1,200,000      7,034,362  -             
Athletic Fields Construction Phase III 9,099,787          9,099,787  -             

Total - community recreation 16,446,558              1,200,000           17,646,558     -                  

TOTAL CPA FUND $ 22,258,388            $ 8,764,263          $ 31,022,651     $ -                 

CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
COMMUNITY PRESERVATION FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS OUT
BUDGET TO ACTUAL - LEGAL LEVEL OF CONTROL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
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Encumbrances/
Final Continued Closed to

Budget Expended Appropriations Fund Balance

$ 182,907          $ 124,588          $ -                           $ 58,319                  
3,224,006       3,224,006       -                           -                        
3,406,913       3,348,594       -                           58,319                  

2,213,429       -                 -                           2,213,429              

-                 -                 -                           -                        
694,853          694,853          -                           -                        

112                -                 -                           112                       
510,525          70,202            440,323                   -                        
15,000            -                 15,000                     -                        
15,000            -            15,000                 -                        

1,235,490       765,055          470,323                   112                       

562,034          -                 -                           562,034                 
44,246            -                 44,246                     -                        
1,800              -                 1,800                       -                        

26,790            16,080            10,710                     -                        
216,486          202,156          14,330                     -                        

5,950              5,950              -                           -                        
9,460              9,460              -                           -                        

11,896            -                 -                           11,896                  
73,400            20,925            52,475                     -                        

125,000          73,581            51,419                     -                        
1,077,062       328,152          174,980                   573,930                 

-                 -                 -                           -                        
562,034          562,034          -                           -                        

4,412              -                 4,412                       -                        
307,990          307,990          -                           -                        
449,486          437,823          11,663                     -                        
616,998          75,100            541,898                   -                        
421,462          -                 421,462                   -                        

3,000,000       711,408          2,288,592                 -                        
80,817            15,000            65,817                     -                        

 5,443,199        2,109,355        3,333,844                  -                        

167,134          -                 167,134                   -                        
46,262            -                 46,262                     -                        

-                 -                 -                           -                        
1,000              -                 -                           1,000                    

580,242          580,242          -                           -                        
270,458          60,320            210,138                   -                        
31,413            17,013            14,400                 -                   

415,900          378,452     37,448                 -                   
7,034,362       4,386,443  2,647,919            -                   
9,099,787       67,540       9,032,247            -                   

17,646,558     5,490,010       12,155,548               1,000                    

$ 31,022,651     $ 12,041,166     $ 16,134,695               $ 2,846,790             
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Continued FY 2024  
Appropriations Appropriations Transfers

School Building Improvement Fund:
Carr Elementary Evaluation/Design - 2012 $ 1,674                    $ -                       $ (1,674)         
Carr Elementary Renovations - 2013 17,977                  (17,977)                 -              
Horace Mann Elevator 34,550                  -                       -              
Lincoln Eliot & NECP Feas Study 60,867                  -                       -              
Lincoln Eliot HVAC System 53,268                  -                       (53,268)       
Bigelow Boiler Repl-2019 152,333                -                       (152,333)     
FA Day Boilers- 2020 326,417                (131,484)               (194,933)     
Horace Mann Improvements 15,375                  -                       -              
Oak Hill Addition-2021 29,061                  -                       (29,061)       
Peirce HVAC System- 2023 64,832                  -                       -              
Horace Mann Add/Reno- 2024 -                       -                       1,160,684    

Total School Building Improvement Fund 756,354                (149,461)               729,415       

Angier School Improvement Fund
Angier Elementary School Construction - 2014 8,083                    -                       (8,083)         

Zervas School Improvement Fund
Zervas Elementary Renovation - 2014 1,578,551             (1,505,182)            (73,369)       

Cabot School Improvement Fund
Cabot Construction 1/2017 476,360                -                       (213,743)     
23 Parkview Ave Land Taking - 2016 10,228                  -                       (10,228)       

Total Cabot School Improvement Fund 486,588                -                       (223,971)     

Lincoln-Eliot School Improvement Fund
Lincoln-Eliot Construction - 2022 Bond 36,685,539           4,890,391             -              
Lincoln-Eliot Construction 10,000,000           -                       -              

Total Lincoln-Eliot School Improvement Fund 46,685,539           4,890,391             -              

Countryside School Improvement Fund
Countryside Feasibility Study-2021 1,250,000             (1,250,000)            -              
Countryside MSBA -                       312,488                -              
Countryside Construction- 2024 -                       74,418,462           -              
Total Countryside School Improvement Fund 1,250,000             73,480,950           -              

Franklin School Improvement Fund
Franklin Feasibility Study-2023 1,150,000             -                       -              

Municipal Building Improvement Fund
Fire Station #3/HQ - 2015 90,074                  -                       (90,074)       
Fire Station#3/HQ - 2016 51,317                  -                       (51,317)       
City Hall Window Replacement/Repairs - 2011 85,594                  -                       (85,594)       
Senior Center HVAC improvements - 2015 14,630                  -                       (14,630)       
Energy Conservation Improvements - 2016 12,403                  -                       (12,403)       
City Hall Roof Heat Trace Wiring - 2016 58,926                  -                       (58,926)       
Crafts Street Garage Roof-2019 30,552                  -                       -              
Senior Ctr Construction- Feas 2019 42,961                  -                       -              
NEWCAL- Feas, Design, Site 2019 -                       -                       -              
Police HQ- Boiler Repl 2020 4,136                    -                       (4,136)         
Newton Early Childhood Prog 2020 905,873                (3,766)                   -              
687 Washington St Site Remediation 2020 42,608                  -                       -              
2020 Energy Efficiency Projects 11,610                  -                       (11,610)       
Angino Farm Solar Project 2,163                    -                       (2,163)         
Library HVAC System-2023 849,831                1,191,000             -              
NewCal Construction- 2023 18,239,287           10,000,000           -              

Total Municipal Building Improvement Fund 20,441,965           11,187,234           (330,853)     

CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS OUT
BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
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Expended Encumbered Balance

$ -                $ -                  $ -                 
-                -                  -                 

34,550          -                  -                 
60,867          -                  -                 

-                -                  -                 
-                -                  -                 
-                -                  -                 

15,000          368                  7                     
-                -                  -                 

26,700          26,700             11,432            
644,195         44,117             472,372          
781,312         71,185             483,811          

-                -                  -                 

-                -                  -                 

129,903         -                  132,714          
-                -                  -                 

129,903         -                  132,714          

16,938,358    18,554,432       6,083,140        
-                10,000,000       -                 

16,938,358    28,554,432       6,083,140        

-                -                  -                 
-                -                  312,488          

3,617,417      5,274,980         65,526,065      
3,617,417      5,274,980         65,838,553      

1,054,291      87,670             8,039              

-                -                  -                 
-                -                  -                 
-                -                  -                 
-                -                  -                 
-                -                  -                 
-                -                  -                 
-                3,377               27,175            
-                -                  42,961            
-                -                  -                 
-                -                  -                 

740,901         31,307             129,899          
-                -                  42,608            
-                -                  -                 
-                -                  -                 

206,880         1,833,951         -                 
4,733,567      21,940,070       1,565,650        
5,681,348      23,808,705       1,808,293        

(Continued)
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Continued FY 2024  
Appropriations Appropriations Transfers

CH 90 Highway Improvement Fund:
Unallocated 732,803                913,027                -              
Old Ch 90 Balance 132,608                
Approved projects 1,876,056             3,586,954             -              
Fair Share Apportionment 1,025,577             

Total CH 90 Highway Improvement Fund 2,608,859             5,658,166             -              

Massworks Road Improvement Fund:
Upper Falls Pette St (reimbursable) 114,498                -                       -              
Pettee Sq- Oak/Chestnut (reimbursable) 2,018,816             -                       -              

Total Massworks Road Improvement Fund 2,133,314             -                       -              

Municipal Equipment Replacement Fund:
Police Dispatch Console Replacement - 2017 45,000                  -                       (45,000)       
Sewer Cleaner Equipment - 2016 40,410                  -                       (40,410)       
Parks Two trash trucks - 2018 2,520                    -                       (2,520)         
Backhoe truck - 2018 12,669                  -                       (12,669)       
Fire Engine #2 repl - 2019 84,734                  -                       -              
Modular Trailer at Rumford Ave-2020 71,999                  -                       -              
Parking Meters and Kiosks- 2020 150,346                -                       -              
Two 10-Wheel Swap Loader Trucks- 2022 725,000                -                       -              
Public Safety Radio Infrastructure- 2023 359,678                -                       -              
Sidewalk Clearing Tractor- 2023 1,370                    -                       (1,370)         
Fire Engine #7- 2023 609,799                -                       
Hybrid Police Cruisers- 2023 258,524                -                       -              
DPW Replacement Vehicles- 2023 1,000,000             -                       -              
DPW Dump Trucks - 2024 -                       1,000,000             -              

Total Municipal Equipment Replacement Fund 3,362,049             1,000,000             (101,969)     

Street Improvement Fund
Dedham/Nahanton/Brk Intersection Improv 44,897                  -                       (44,897)       
Ded/Nah/Brk Intersection Improvement 94,274                  -                       (94,274)       
West Newton Sq Improv 48,205                  -                       -              
Comm Ave Greening Improvements 4,530                    -                       -              
Walnut/Austin St Rehab 305,913                -                       -              
Library Parking Lot 355,804                -                       -              
Washington St Redesign Pilot 394,172                -                       -              
Lowell Ave Traffic Safety Improvements 50,000                  -                       -              
MassDOT Needham St (reimbursable) (71,286)                 -                       -              
Winter Recovery Assistance Program 134,339                -                       -              
     Total Street Improvement Fund 1,360,848             -                       (139,171)     

Water System Improvement Fund:
MWRA - Water System - Accumulated Interest Income 750,826                463,399                -              
2017 MWRA Lead Replacement 353,304                -                       -              
MWRA - Water System Improvements - Loan of 2019 155,072                -                       -              
MWRA - Water System Improvements - Loan of 2020 146,727                -                       -              
MWRA - Water System Improvements - Loan of 2022 998,000                -                       -              
MWRA - Water System Main Improv - Loan of 2022 2,083,700             -                       -              
MWRA - Water System Main Improv - Loan of 2023 2,083,700             -                       -              
MWRA - Water System Main Improv - Loan of 2024 -                       2,083,700             -              
Water Main Improvements - 2015 120,974                -                       -              
Water Main Improvements- 2020 1,717,246             -                       -              
Water Main Improvements-2021 1,065,704             -                       -              
Waban Hill Reservoir Rehab-Engineering 274,782                -                       -              
Meter System Replacement- 2022 5,710,524             -                       -              
Water Main Improvements- 2022 3,200,000             -                       -              
Hydro Vacuum Excavator-2024 -                       615,000                -              
Water Main Improvements- 2025 -                       3,200,000             -              

Total Water System Improvement Fund 18,660,559           6,362,099             -              

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
BUDGET TO ACTUAL

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS OUT

126

DRAFT



  
Expended Encumbered Balance

-                -                  1,645,830        
71,286          61,322            

1,368,813      3,679,431         414,766          
1,025,577        

1,440,099      3,679,431         3,147,495        

-                -                  114,498          
1,074,294      918,230           26,292            
1,074,294      918,230           140,790          

-                -                  -                 
-                -                  -                 
-                -                  -                 
-                -                  -                 

25,470          -                  59,264            
-                -                  71,999            

1,690            138,001           10,655            
725,000         -                  -                 
306,968         52,710             -                 

-                -                  -                 
10,903          560,869           38,027            

258,390         -                  134                 
535,402         345,010           119,588          

-                993,149           6,851              
1,863,823      2,089,739         306,518          

-                -                  -                 
-                -                  -                 

17,431          12,405             18,369            
-                -                  4,530              

107,652         -                  198,261          
88,006          -                  267,798          

205,748         178,965           9,459              
50,000          -                  -                 

(71,286)         -                  -                 
35,146          -                  99,193            

432,697         191,370           597,610          

-                -                  1,214,225        
-                -                  353,304          

102,525         32,462             20,085            
146,727         -                  -                 
305,795         315,249           376,956          

-                1,422,600         661,100          
-                2,083,700         -                 
-                2,083,700         -                 

99,809          21,165             -                 
1,709,081      -                  8,165              
1,065,704      -                  -                 

274,782         -                  -                 
2,351,102      1,340,618         2,018,804        

-                946,923           2,253,077        
-                -                  615,000          
-                -                  3,200,000        

6,055,525      8,246,417         10,720,716      

(Continued)
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Continued FY 2024  
Appropriations Appropriations Transfers

Sanitary Sewer Improvement Fund:
MWRA - Sewer I&I - Accumulated Interest Income 826,923                640,428                -              
Sewer I&I - 2016 23                        -                       -              
Sewer I&I- 2018 67,721                  -                       -              
Project Area III/IV/V - 2015 30,936                  -                       -              
Sewer I&I- 2019 12,000                  -                       -              
Staniford St Sewer Extension- 2019 45,858                  -                       (45,858)       
Rumford Ave Transfer Station-2019 1,300                    -                       (1,300)         
Vactor Combination Cleaner Truck-2020 1,730                    -                       (1,730)         
2021 Design Pump Station -                       -                       -              
Islington Road Pump Station 111,897                -                       -              
Sewer System I&I Proj 8- 2022 626,403                -                       -              
Meter System Replacement- 2022 5,659,846             -                       -              
Pump Station- 2023 4,127,000             -                       -              
Crafts St Wash Bay-2023 1,000,000             -                       -              
MWRA - Infiltration/Inflow - 2014 (Project Area II) -                       -                       -              
MWRA Infiltration/Inflow - 2016 (Projects III & IV) 123,452                -                       -              
MWRA Infiltration/Inflow - 2017 Proj 38,046                  -                       -              
MWRA Infiltration/Inflow - 2018 (Proj 6) -                       -                       -              
MWRA Sewer Improvements Grant 2019 -                       -                       -              
MWRA Sewer Improvements Grant 2020 2,984,830             -                       -              
MWRA Infiltration/Inflow - 2021 (Proj 9) 2,381,882             -                       -              
2023 MWRA- Sewer CIP (Proj 9) 4,340,000             -                       -              

Total Sanitary Sewer Improvement Fund 22,379,847           640,428                (48,888)       

Storm Drainage Improvement Fund
Dedham Street Storm Drainage Improvements 12,677                  -                       (12,677)       
Laundry Brook Culvert Construction 13,192                  -                       (13,192)       
Franklin Storm Water Project 15,352                  -                       (15,352)       
Hammond Brook Culvert Repl- 2018 5,240                    -                       (5,240)         
Crafts Street Wash Bay -2019 317,263                -                       -              
S. Meadow Brook Drain Basin- 2019 5,535                    -                       (5,535)         
Vacuum Street Sweeper- 2020 19,240                  -                       (19,240)       
City Hall Pond & Culverts Dredging-2020 500,000                3,000,000             -              
Cheesecake Brook Bridge- 2022 8,720                    -                       (8,720)         
Bulloughs Pond Dam Rehab- 2022 86,253                  -                       -              
Chestnut St betw Beacon and Comm- 2022 277,739                -                       -              
Library Parking Lot- Stormwater 227,741                -                       -              
Myrtle & McGrath Subsurface System -                       200,000                -              
Stormwater Asset Management Plan -                       75,000                  -              

Total Storm Drainage Improvement Fund 1,488,952             3,275,000             (79,956)       

Capital Stabilization Fund:
Designated for General Bonded Projects -                       -                       513,787       
Designated for General Unrestricted Projects 26,731                  -                       395,279       
Designated for Fire Station Renovations 16,395                  -                       141,391       
Designated for Energy Conservation Projects 194,853                116,716                26,176        
Designated for 2013 Override Capital Projects 154,185                -                       232,054       
Designated for Ordinary Capital Appropriations -                       -                       -              
Designated for Sewer OFS Projects -                       -                       48,888        
Designated for Stormwater Bonded Projects -                       -                       5,240          
Designated for Stormwater OFS Projects -                       -                       74,715        

Total Capital Stabilization Fund 392,164                116,716                1,437,530    

Total Capital Projects Funds $ 124,743,672          $ 104,956,341          $ 1,160,685    

 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS OUT
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Expended Encumbered Balance

-                -                  1,467,351        
-                23                    -                 
-                49,264             18,457            
-                7,086               23,850            
-                -                  12,000            
-                -                  -                 
-                -                  -                 
-                -                  -                 
-                -                  -                 

5,690            -                  106,207          
531,925         15,315             79,163            

2,518,327      1,350,584         1,790,935        
203,304         3,743,475         180,221          

1,000,000      -                  -                 
-                -                  -                 

119,680         1,251               2,521              
-                1,582               36,464            
-                -                  -                 
-                -                  -                 

1,951,954      1,032,860         16                   
75,419          1,016,181         1,290,282        

633,609         2,940,138         766,253          
7,039,908      10,157,759       5,773,720        

-                -                  -                 
-                -                  -                 
-                -                  -                 
-                -                  -                 

76,352          15,141             225,770          
-                -                  -                 
-                -                  -                 

2,361,990      137,560           1,000,450        
-                -                  -                 

15,321          69,312             1,620              
277,739         -                  -                 

2,448            -                  225,293          
-                -                  200,000          
-                -                  75,000            

2,733,850      222,013           1,728,133        

-                -                  513,787          
-                -                  422,010          
-                -                  157,786          
-                -                  337,745          
-                -                  386,239          
-                -                  -                 
-                -                  48,888            
-                -                  5,240              
-                -                  74,715            
-                -                  1,946,410        

$ 48,842,825    $ 83,301,931       $ 98,715,942      

(Concluded)
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 Continued FY 2024 FY 2024
 Appropriations Original Budget Budget Revisions

Sewer Maintenance & Operation
Personal Services $ -                     $ 2,472,182              $ -                           
Expenses 699,753              1,192,079              -                           
Capital Outlay 1,241,870            392,867                 -                           
Fringe Benefits -                     438,499                  -                           
  Total 1,941,623            4,495,627              -                           

MWRA Sewer Assessment  
Intergovernmental -                     23,854,723            -                           

Legal settlements 198,831              50,000                   -                           

Debt Maturities & Interest -                     1,879,479              -                           

Retirement -                     860,816                 -                           
 
Transfer - Workers Compensation Fund -                     250,000                 -                           
 
Transfer - Sewer Capital Project Fund -                     -                        1,987,500                 

Transfer - General Fund -                     2,142,000              -                           

Total Sewer Enterprise Fund $ 2,140,454            $ 33,532,645            $ 1,987,500                 

CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS OUT
BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
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Encumbrances/
FY 2024 Budget Total  Revised   Continued Closed to

As Amended FY 2024 Budget Expended Appropriations Fund Balance
 

$ 2,472,182              $ 2,472,182                $ 1,743,775         $ -                         $ 728,407              
1,192,079              1,891,832                1,259,222         632,610                  -                     

392,867                 1,634,737                218,125            1,416,612                -                     
438,499                 438,499                  423,277            -                         15,222                

4,495,627              6,437,250                3,644,399         2,049,222                743,629              

 
23,854,723             23,854,723              23,540,735        -                         313,988              

50,000                   248,831                  -                   248,831                  -                     

1,879,479              1,879,479                1,879,478         -                         1                        
 

860,816                 860,816                  852,150            -                         8,666                  
  

250,000                 250,000                  250,000            -                         -                     
  

1,987,500              1,987,500                1,987,500         -                         -                     
 

2,142,000              2,142,000                2,142,000         -                         -                     
 

$ 35,520,145             $ 37,660,599              $ 34,296,262        $ 2,298,053                $ 1,066,284            
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 Continued FY 2024 FY 2024
 Appropriations Original Budget Budget Revisions

Water Maintenance & Operation
Personal Services $ -                     $ 2,133,706             $ (50,000)                  
Expenses 1,603,685           1,737,573             500,000                 
Capital Outlay 1,569,698           300,000                -                        
Fringe Benefits -                     485,487               -                        
  Total 3,173,383           4,656,766             450,000                 

-                        
Debt Maturities & Interest -                     3,826,777             -                        

Retirement -                     905,776               -                        

MWRA/DEP Assessments & Charges -                     14,422,960           -                        

Legal Settlements -                     50,000                 -                        

Transfer - Sewer Fund -                     683,028               -                        

Transfer - General Fund -                     1,817,000             -                        

Transfer - Water Capital Project Fund -                     -                      6,827,500              

Transfer - Workers Compensation Fund -                     250,000               50,000                   

Total Water Enterprise Fund $ 3,173,383           $ 26,612,307           $ 7,327,500              

CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
WATER ENTERPRISE FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS OUT
BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
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Encumbrances/
FY 2024 Budget Total  Revised   Continued Closed to

As Amended FY 2024 Budget Expended Appropriations Fund Balance
 

$ 2,083,706              $ 2,083,706              $ 1,836,980         $ -                          $ 246,726           
2,237,573              3,841,258              1,588,295         2,252,963             -                  

300,000                1,869,698              294,892            1,574,806             -                  
485,487                485,487                383,891            -                       101,596           

5,106,766              8,280,149              4,104,058         3,827,769             348,322           
 

3,826,777              3,826,777              3,826,777         -                       -                  
  

905,776                905,776                888,973            -                       16,803             
  

14,422,960            14,422,960            14,459,579       -                       (36,619)            
  

50,000                  50,000                  -                   50,000                 -                  

683,028                683,028                683,028            -                       -                  
  

1,817,000              1,817,000              1,817,000         -                       -                  
  

6,827,500              6,827,500              6,827,500         -                       -                  
  

300,000                300,000                300,000            -                       -                  
 

$ 33,939,807            $ 37,113,190            $ 32,906,915       $ 3,877,769             $ 328,506           
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 Continued FY 2024 FY 2024
 Appropriations Original Budget Budget Revisions

Stormwater Maintenance & Operation
Personal Services $ -                     $ 880,135               $ -                        
Expenses 1,356,207           843,450               -                        
Capital Outlay 183,129              100,940               -                        
Fringe Benefits -                     93,480                 25,000                   
  Total 1,539,336           1,918,005             25,000                   

Retirement -                     142,973               -                        

Legal Settlements 11,848                -                      

Debt Maturities and Interest -                     493,845               -                        

Budget Reserve -                     1,050,000             (300,000)                

Transfer - Stormwater Capital Fund -                     -                      3,275,000              

Transfer - General Fund -                     836,000               -                        

Transfer - Workers Compensation Fund -                     100,000               -                        

Total Stormwater Enterprise Fund $ 1,551,184           $ 4,540,823             $ 3,000,000              

CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
STORMWATER ENTERPRISE FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS OUT
BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
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Encumbrances/
FY 2024 Budget Total  Revised   Continued Closed to

As Amended FY 2024 Budget Expended Appropriations Fund Balance
 

$ 880,135                $ 880,135                $ 783,447            $ -                          $ 96,688             
843,450                2,199,657              1,132,297         1,067,360             -                  
100,940                284,069                62,845              221,224                -                  
118,480                118,480                108,834            -                       9,646               

1,943,005              3,482,341              2,087,423         1,288,584             106,334           
  

142,973                142,973                142,890            -                       83                   
  

-                       11,848                  11,848              -                  

493,845                493,845                493,845            -                       -                  

750,000                750,000                -                   -                       750,000           

3,275,000              3,275,000              3,275,000         -                       -                  
  

836,000                836,000                836,000            -                       -                  
  

100,000                100,000                100,000            -                       -                  
 

$ 7,540,823              $ 9,092,007              $ 6,947,006         $ 1,288,584             $ 856,417           
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STATISTICAL SECTION 
 
 
This part of the City of Newton’s annual comprehensive financial report presents detailed information as a 
context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required 
supplementary information says about the City’s overall financial health. 
 
 
Financial Trends 
            
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City’s financial performance and well-being have 
changed over time. 
 
 
Revenue Capacity  
 
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City’s most significant local revenue source, the property tax. 
 
 
Debt Capacity  
 
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City’s current levels of outstanding debt and 
the City’s ability to issue additional debt in the future. 
 
 
Demographic and Economic Information  
 
This schedule offers demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment within which the City’s 
financial activities take place. 
 
 
Operating Information  
 
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information in the City’s financial 
report relates to the services the City provides and the activities it performs. 
 
 
Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the annual 
comprehensive financial reports for the relevant year. 
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2015 2016 2017 2018

Governmental Activities
Net investment in capital assets………………………..$ 258,490,143   $ 260,763,492    $ 271,665,564   $ 278,142,332     
Restricted………………………………………………………………….32,723,876     34,250,976      33,507,464     39,481,750       
Unrestricted………………………………………………………………….(436,919,140)  (455,531,782)   (853,427,299)  (880,169,294)    

Total governmental activities net position……………………………………………………...………………………………………………………………….$ (145,705,121)  $ (160,517,314)   $ (548,254,271)  $ (562,545,212)    

Business-Type Activities
Net investment in capital assets………………………..$ 83,521,987     $ 89,426,102      $ 94,552,211     $ 101,217,609     
Unrestricted………………………………………………………………….12,101,552     20,314,782      17,913,166     18,708,882       

Total business-type activities net position…………………………………..………………………………………………………………….$ 95,623,539     $ 109,740,884    $ 112,465,377   $ 119,926,491     

Primary Government
Net investment in capital assets………………………..$ 342,012,130   $ 350,189,594    $ 366,217,775   $ 379,359,941     
Restricted………………………………………………………………….32,723,876     34,250,976      33,507,464     39,481,750       
Unrestricted………………………………………………………………….(424,817,588)  (435,217,000)   (835,514,133)  (861,460,412)    

Total primary government net position………………………………...………………………………………………………………….$ (50,081,582)    $ (50,776,430)    $ (435,788,894)  $ (442,618,721)    

NET POSITION BY COMPONENT
(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
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2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

$ 289,288,369     $ 299,446,858     $ 309,888,772      $ 323,164,760         $ 345,936,022      $ 409,050,860      
43,753,181       44,698,129       45,150,711        39,478,139          45,192,173        91,768,719        

(885,881,588)    (977,457,362)    (1,004,203,638)  (966,259,133)       (929,091,329)     (922,551,804)     

$ (552,840,038)    $ (633,312,375)    $ (649,164,155)     $ (603,616,234)       $ (537,963,134)     $ (421,732,225)     

$ 111,179,650     $ 117,784,284     $ 119,952,957      $ 133,006,941         $ 137,155,090      $ 147,446,728      
20,677,223       21,775,318       32,743,627        26,471,516          35,098,715        30,777,766        

$ 131,856,873     $ 139,559,602     $ 152,696,584      $ 159,478,457         $ 172,253,805      $ 178,224,494      

$ 400,468,019     $ 417,231,142     $ 429,841,729      $ 456,171,701         $ 483,091,112      $ 556,497,588      
43,753,181       44,698,129       45,150,711        39,478,139          45,192,173        91,768,719        

(865,204,365)    (955,682,044)    (971,460,011)     (939,787,617)       (893,992,614)     (891,774,038)     

$ (420,983,165)    $ (493,752,773)    $ (496,467,571)     $ (444,137,777)       $ (365,709,329)     $ (243,507,731)     
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2015 2016 2017 2018
Expenses  

General government……………………………………………………$ 26,440,640     $ 28,489,575     $ 30,363,602     $ 30,081,504     
Public safety…………………………………………………………….. 68,685,178     74,526,967     77,684,860     78,526,981     
Education………………………………………………………………… 273,738,170   287,559,898   309,135,770   315,908,244   
Public works……………………………………………………………. 33,419,187     29,698,488     32,690,317     37,206,974     
Health and human services…………………………………………. 11,625,318     12,319,296     12,650,838     12,812,793     
Culture and recreation………………………………………………… 17,759,803     20,385,376     20,368,611     21,312,457     
Debt service - interest……………………………………………………………………. 9,906,400       10,945,881     10,725,817     14,416,456     

 
Total expenses…………………………………………………………… 441,574,696   463,925,481   493,619,815   510,265,409   

Program Revenues
Charges for services……………………………………………………………….. 28,572,429     32,651,120     32,016,871     34,118,209     
Operating grants and contributions……………………………………………………………….. 64,031,611     67,774,244     83,577,037     87,258,085     
Capital grants and contributions……………………………………………………………….. 3,703,180       4,232,242       2,616,320       4,264,589       

Total program revenues…………………………………………………………… 96,307,220     104,657,606   118,210,228   125,640,883   

Net (expense)/revenue…………………………………………………. (345,267,476)  (359,267,875)  (375,409,587)  (384,624,526)  

General Revenues and
Other Changes in Net Position
Real estate and personal  

property taxes…………………………………………………………… 289,075,613   309,686,267   321,041,250   331,364,668   
Motor vehicle and other 

excise taxes……………………………………. 12,670,852     13,061,883     13,392,891     13,649,251     
Hotel/motel taxes…………………………………………………………………. 2,330,724       2,444,007       2,263,279       2,440,667       
Meal taxes………………………………………………………………………………. 1,786,617       1,880,428       1,938,182       1,902,662       
Cannabis state taxes……………………….……………………………………………………………………………….-                     -                     -                     -                     
Penalties and interest on taxes………………………………………………………………………………. 1,509,583       1,282,596       1,409,030       2,198,862       
Payments in lieu of taxes………………………………………………………………………………. 476,899          461,586          443,150          1,229,355       
Community preservation surcharges……………………………………….. 2,818,748       2,945,936       3,085,259       3,254,161       
Grants and contributions not  

restricted to specific programs………………………………………………………………………………. 5,968,282       6,309,128       6,160,868       6,321,899       
Unrestricted investment income………………………………………………………………………………. 265,809          483,866          909,764          1,986,190       
Gain (Loss) on sale of 

capital assets……………………………………………………….. -                     -                     119,489          92,435            
Other………………………………………………………………………………. 2,304,964       3,305,255       1,966,066       2,157,648       
Transfers, net………………………………………………………………………………. 2,088,882       2,594,730       3,099,125       3,735,787       

Total general revenues and
other changes in net position………………………… 321,296,973   344,455,682   355,828,353   370,333,585   

Change in net position……………………………………………………………..$ (23,970,503)    $ (14,812,193)    $ (19,581,234)    $ (14,290,941)    

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
CHANGES IN NET POSITION (ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
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2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

$ 31,005,249     $ 36,091,937       $ 38,529,670        $ 48,571,545     $ 33,623,736     $ 33,123,284       
80,638,692     100,638,858     84,057,523        76,304,626     87,748,682     84,835,796       

318,140,994   397,128,915     378,440,451      334,630,801   344,203,438   323,946,296     
34,337,618     37,447,196       34,821,166        34,441,411     35,735,972     42,239,248       
12,881,214     15,079,778       13,494,717        13,597,466     13,716,818     14,227,481       
20,216,213     21,451,308       19,932,623        19,127,922     21,228,239     23,652,828       
12,394,788     9,292,945         9,651,152          8,963,596       9,017,014       8,708,726         

509,614,768   617,130,937     578,927,302      535,637,367   545,273,899   530,733,659     

35,745,286     33,454,980       22,272,175        32,291,832     40,101,398     43,911,221       
86,589,421     99,194,694       122,100,314      110,210,080   104,623,688   114,836,287     
11,176,779     3,727,020         4,751,688          9,985,525       610,063          2,677,504         

133,511,486   136,376,694     149,124,177      152,487,437   145,335,149   161,425,012     

(376,103,282)  (480,754,243)    (429,803,125)     (383,149,930)  (399,938,750)  (369,308,647)    

346,757,156   359,616,332     376,547,753      384,990,632   413,912,744   425,576,715     

13,857,190     14,331,513       13,690,851        14,099,381     14,573,965     16,551,196       
2,411,164       2,158,604         314,597             1,164,749       1,979,180       2,269,405         
2,026,232       1,838,810         1,352,560          1,982,019       2,387,099       2,635,047         

-                     269,805           362,725             524,737          648,681          654,779           
1,456,045       1,263,507         2,251,230          6,475,203       1,383,623       1,684,131         

620,405          659,283           -                        113,922          242,126          122,000           
3,385,398       3,527,894         3,676,800          3,799,412       4,018,273       4,138,342         

6,710,460       7,281,872         7,676,004          7,140,815       8,392,099       7,863,342         
3,856,837       2,851,265         462,472             877,523          10,144,691     16,264,298       

-                     -                      (496,476)            -                     -                     -                      
898,387          2,385,716         2,902,230          3,031,108       3,274,546       2,856,458         

3,829,182       4,097,305         4,310,000          4,498,350       4,634,823       4,923,843         

385,808,456   400,281,906     413,050,746      428,697,851   465,591,850   485,539,556     

$ 9,705,174       $ (80,472,337)      $ (16,752,379)       $ 45,547,921     $ 65,653,100     $ 116,230,909     
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2015 2016 2017 2018
Expenses

Sewer……………………………………………………$ 26,254,561     $ 24,958,975     $ 26,159,136     $ 26,252,621     
Water…………………………………………………… 17,503,699     19,439,528     20,212,470     20,424,302     
Stormwater…………………………………………………… 1,118,476       1,295,988       925,695         2,785,074       

 
Total expenses…………………………………………………………… 44,876,736     45,694,491     47,297,301     49,461,997     

 
Program Revenues  

Charges for services……………………………………………………………….. 54,741,671     59,064,372     61,488,035     59,362,817     
Operating grants and contributions……………………………………………………………….. 506,547         545,793         464,271         348,089         
Capital grants and contributions……………………………………………………………….. 3,797,829       2,796,401       91,567           947,992         

 
Total program revenues…………………………………………………………… 59,046,047     62,406,566     62,043,873     60,658,898     

 
Net (expense)/revenue…………………………………………………. 14,169,311     16,712,075     14,746,572     11,196,901     

 
General Revenues and Transfers  

Gain (loss) on sale of capital asset………………………………………………………………………………. -                    -                    (55,259)          -                    
Transfers, net………………………………………………………………………………. (2,088,882)      (2,594,730)      (3,099,125)      (3,735,787)      

Change in net position……………………………………………………………..$ 12,080,429     $ 14,117,345     $ 11,592,188     $ 7,461,114       

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
CHANGES IN NET POSITION (ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
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2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

$ 28,066,143     $ 29,156,347     $ 27,836,234     $ 28,952,544     $ 31,285,898     $ 34,183,295     
19,845,729     21,402,813     20,629,851     21,574,951     20,802,779     21,556,036     
1,630,752       1,801,572       1,510,859       1,600,409       1,988,302       2,732,781       

49,542,624     52,360,732     49,976,944     52,127,904     54,076,979     58,472,112     

60,059,988     60,011,504     67,148,742     62,874,448     66,988,763     67,698,869     
1,182,080       471,521         486,926         476,860         504,912         563,948         
4,118,366       3,649,886       24,265           56,819           3,993,475       1,103,827       

65,360,434     64,132,911     67,659,933     63,408,127     71,487,150     69,366,644     

15,817,810     11,772,179     17,682,989     11,280,223     17,410,171     10,894,532     

(58,246)          27,855           (236,007)        -                    -                    -                    
(3,829,182)      (4,097,305)      (4,310,000)      (4,498,350)      (4,634,823)      (4,923,843)      

$ 11,930,382     $ 7,702,729       $ 13,136,982     $ 6,781,873       $ 12,775,348     $ 5,970,689       
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2015 2016 2017 2018

Total expenses……………………………………………………………$ 486,451,432      $ 509,619,972      $ 540,917,116      $ 559,727,406      

Total program revenues……………………………………………………………155,353,267      167,064,172      180,254,101      186,299,781      

Net (expense)/revenue………………………………………………….(331,098,165)     (342,555,800)     (360,663,015)     (373,427,625)     

Total general revenues, transfers and
other changes in net position…………….……………………………………………319,208,091      341,860,952      352,673,969      366,597,798      

Change in net position……………………………………………………………..$ (11,890,074)       $ (694,848)            $ (7,989,046)         $ (6,829,827)         

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
CHANGES IN NET POSITION (ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
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2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

$ 559,157,392      $ 669,491,669      $ 628,904,246      $ 587,765,271      $ 599,350,878      $ 588,721,422      

198,871,920      200,509,605      216,784,110      215,895,564      216,822,299      230,791,656      

(360,285,472)     (468,982,064)     (412,120,136)     (371,869,707)     (382,528,579)     (357,929,766)     

381,921,028      396,212,456      408,504,739      424,199,501      460,957,027      480,615,713      

$ 21,635,556        $ (72,769,608)       $ (3,615,397)         $ 52,329,794        $ 78,428,448        $ 122,685,947      
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2015 2016 2017 2018

General Fund
Restricted………………………………………………………………………$ 3,006,074      $ 2,814,268      $ 3,557,530      $ 2,534,792      
Committed……………………………………………………………………… 5,308,421      8,851,803      14,868,949    14,389,268    
Assigned……………………………………………………………………… 2,451,384      2,176,104      2,376,483      5,667,495      
Unassigned……………………………………………………………………… 27,757,785    43,616,522    46,247,662    44,030,380    

 
Total general fund……………………………….……………………………………………$ 38,523,664    $ 57,458,697    $ 67,050,624    $ 66,621,935    

All Other Governmental Funds
Nonspendable………………………………………………………………………$ 397,170        $ 397,049        $ 396,932        $ 397,064        
Restricted……………………………………………………………………… 38,421,915    50,313,321    39,994,517    54,303,913    
Committed……………………………………………………………………… 1,281,577      1,554,522      1,679,111      3,440,236      
Unassigned……………………………………………………………………… -                   -                   -                   (482,998)       

Total all other governmental funds……………………………………………………………….………………………..$ 40,100,662    $ 52,264,892    $ 42,070,560    $ 57,658,215    

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FUND BALANCES (MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
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2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

$ 2,429,856      $ 2,429,856      $ 2,153,889      $ 2,044,712      $ 1,935,535      $ 2,219,603       
15,274,720    13,964,488    11,175,244    17,895,032    20,131,718    48,180,730     
5,854,412      8,200,717      10,057,666    10,871,394    12,119,775    12,708,138     

47,461,036    48,429,978    60,753,316    72,941,098    81,892,026    64,896,373     

$ 71,020,024    $ 73,025,039    $ 84,140,115    $ 103,752,236  $ 116,079,054  $ 128,004,844   

$ 399,125        $ 366,932        $ 366,932        $ 366,932        $ 366,932        $ 366,932          
44,186,541    57,123,913    46,662,028    46,978,329    64,681,917    67,395,217     
4,211,733      3,872,330      4,260,043      3,320,892      4,165,867      5,134,577       

-                   (492,759)       (3,214,268)     (1,557,167)     (1,738,991)     (4,881,765)      

$ 48,797,399    $ 60,870,416    $ 48,074,735    $ 49,108,986    $ 67,475,725    $ 68,014,961     
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2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
REVENUES

Real estate and personal property taxes………………………………………………….$ 288,700,477  $ 308,965,868  $ 319,976,273  $ 331,697,183  $ 345,311,921  $ 357,254,573
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes……………………………………12,486,356    13,122,277    13,486,831    13,482,711    13,734,610    13,682,730
Hotel/motel tax……………………………………………………………..2,330,724      2,444,007      2,263,279      2,440,667      2,411,164      2,158,604
Meals tax……………………………………………………………….1,786,617      1,880,428      1,938,182      1,902,662      2,026,232      1,838,810
Cannabis State Tax……………………………………………………………….-                   -                   -                   -                   -                   269,805.00    
Payments in lieu of taxes…………………………………………………..465,822        476,083        415,835        1,304,593      618,720        712,629
Community preservation surcharges…………………………………………………..2,814,155      2,946,847      3,074,706      3,255,316      3,372,765      3,490,319
Charges for services…………………………………………………………19,628,195    20,126,506    20,403,479    21,772,655    22,531,156    18,844,265
Intergovernmental ………………………………………………………….53,128,480    60,527,637    91,204,897    95,618,448    102,923,784  109,212,374
Special assessments………………………………………………………..190,603        169,588        193,238        255,536        196,479        303,789
Penalties and interest on taxes……………………………………………1,508,259      1,282,596      1,409,030      2,198,862      1,456,045      1,263,507
Licenses and permits………………………………………………………..7,621,990      10,483,024    10,084,619    11,226,292    13,165,275    14,154,952
Fines and forfeitures………………………………………………………..1,808,854      2,046,389      1,762,093      1,703,654      1,573,549      1,235,061
Settlement Proceeds………………………………………………………..-                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Contributions………………………………………………………………..1,016,439      1,446,969      1,336,660      1,395,073      947,105        1,247,572
Investment income…………………………………………………………..270,552        490,874        1,036,413      2,102,896      3,970,778      2,969,762
Miscellaneous/other…………………………………………………………………………..1,606,532      1,127,899      837,319        904,088        613,662        534,397

 
 395,364,055  427,536,992  469,422,854  491,260,636  514,853,245  529,173,149  
 

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government……………………………………………………27,381,322    30,839,020    38,944,088    30,635,662    26,456,370    43,389,873    
Public safety……………………………………………………………..43,368,473    46,354,662    51,881,011    52,080,273    55,766,763    57,552,339    
Education…………………………………………………………………236,571,691  273,044,983  300,304,073  295,108,157  318,471,378  318,228,515  
Public works…………………………………………………………….33,411,422    29,034,856    33,766,661    38,029,703    36,456,127    38,953,081    
Health and human services………………………………………….4,545,590      4,924,260      5,172,086      5,335,432      5,525,265      6,020,763      
Culture and recreation…………………………………………………13,867,205    16,256,351    18,098,831    18,719,503    17,824,959    16,047,376    
Retirement benefits…………………………………………………………29,199,509    31,235,486    33,521,494    35,651,800    39,410,176    41,058,809    
Insurance……………………………………………………………………..……………………………………..2,000,027      1,618,006      1,931,586      1,706,172      1,717,261      1,786,233      
Claims and judgments……………………………………………….232,282        244,752        157,075        116,369        368,203        470,867        

State and county charges………………………………………………….5,875,034      6,113,282      6,143,354      6,050,954      6,351,888      6,483,982      
Debt service:

Principal………………………………………………………………….9,824,367      10,747,967    12,247,667    12,840,967    13,162,267    14,026,667    
Interest…………………………………………………………………….8,009,057      8,177,639      8,325,141      9,814,380      10,919,960    10,432,503    

414,285,979  458,591,264  510,493,067  506,089,372  532,430,617  554,451,008  

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES……………………………………………….(18,921,924)   (31,054,272)   (41,070,213)   (14,828,736)   (17,577,372)   (25,277,859)   

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in……………………………………………………………………9,399,205      10,001,522    9,103,803      7,259,431      9,126,677      9,685,211      
Proceeds of bonds and notes……………………………………………..25,505,000    55,340,000    35,528,500    24,542,000    8,480,000      32,008,000    
Premium from issuance of bonds and notes………………………………………..1,197,352      3,955,263      1,479,298      1,880,482      805,463        3,250,586      
Proceeds of refunding bonds……………………………………………..19,635,000    19,610,000    65,775,000    11,859,000    -                   -                   
Premium from issuance of refunding bonds…………………………..1,759,523      2,430,245      5,535,226      1,673,284      -                   -                   
Sale of capital assets/leases………………………………………………………..13,300          129,179        115,194        92,435          -                   -                   
Transfers out…………………………………………………………………..(7,264,297)    (7,272,429)    (6,004,678)    (3,523,644)    (5,297,495)    (5,587,906)    
Payments to refunding bond escrow agent…………………………….(21,798,044)   (22,040,245)   (71,064,535)   (13,795,286)   -                   -                   

28,447,039    62,153,535    40,467,808    29,987,702    13,114,645    39,355,891    

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES………………………………………………………………..$ 9,525,115      $ 31,099,263    $ (602,405)       $ 15,158,966    $ (4,462,727)    $ 14,078,032    

DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES AS A PERCENTAGE
OF NONCAPITAL EXPENDITURES………………………..………………………….…………………………………………………….4.3% 4.1% 4.0% 4.5% 4.5% 4.4%

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
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2021 2022 2023 2024

$ 378,021,205 $ 391,533,233 $ 411,266,171 $ 425,566,530
14,092,497 14,308,074 14,225,562 15,866,082

314,597 1,164,749 1,979,180 2,269,405
1,352,560 1,982,019 2,387,099 2,635,047

362,725 524,737 648,681 654,779
403,873 2,333,423 242,126 122,000

3,704,447 3,838,259 3,997,569 4,166,359
14,134,622 18,726,678 24,417,751 26,060,241

133,643,602 122,424,804 111,380,880 122,946,902
200,149 154,969 232,175 354,244

2,251,230 6,475,203 1,383,623 1,684,131
9,332,750 13,938,696 14,977,451 15,531,466

260,431 722,919 1,270,370 1,394,314
-                   -                   -                      616,899           

782,961 1,384,755 1,572,995 1,309,844
821,357 741,321 10,401,470 17,232,284
756,414 767,589 1,593,296 1,598,644

560,435,420  581,021,428  601,976,399     640,009,171     

32,490,168    52,288,414    39,870,070       41,324,180       
57,238,867    63,164,450    66,735,390       69,337,103       

336,854,738  320,154,752  330,980,980     365,263,695     
44,011,232    37,520,293    36,444,415       45,275,904       
5,870,712      6,783,863      6,506,728         6,914,164         

13,698,005    17,243,491    19,463,545       32,645,765       
42,916,424    47,772,419    51,710,352       54,039,527       
1,840,480      1,867,239      1,908,939         2,010,376         

126,534        1,858,593      657,591           611,726           
6,507,813      6,453,245      6,542,353         7,035,664         

14,829,667    14,834,667    15,439,667       16,469,716       
10,985,514    10,457,576    10,190,772       9,974,198         

567,370,154  580,399,002  586,450,802     650,902,018     

(6,934,734)    622,426        15,525,597       (10,892,847)     

6,421,393      14,146,775    25,480,574       25,683,809       
-                   13,755,000    9,620,700         16,107,500       

43,530          668,936        912,437           1,879,841         
-                   -                   -                      12,052,500       
-                   -                   -                      1,120,057         
-                   1,101,660      -                      464,666           

(2,111,393)    (9,648,425)    (20,845,751)     (20,759,966)     
-                   -                   -                      (13,190,534)     

4,353,530      20,023,946    15,167,960       23,357,873       

$ (2,581,204)    $ 20,646,372    $ 30,693,557       $ 12,465,026       

4.5% 4.4% 4.4% 4.5%
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ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY  (1)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Commercial and Total Total Estimated Assessed Value
Fiscal Residential Industrial Personal Assessed Direct Actual as a Percentage 
Year Real Property Real Property Property Value Tax Rate Value (3) of Actual Value

 
2015 19,995,837,989   2,270,794,311    398,472,900  22,665,105,200  12.65       22,305,253,800  101.61%
2016 21,618,642,652   2,285,453,048    417,722,300  24,321,818,000  12.31       26,223,773,800  92.75%
2017 23,453,469,746   2,287,653,254    401,743,300  26,142,866,300  11.98       26,223,773,800  99.69%
2018 25,270,096,630   2,400,479,370    434,148,500  28,104,724,500  11.64       30,006,442,400  93.66%
2019 27,369,325,232   2,596,372,968    459,149,400  30,424,847,600  11.24       30,006,442,400  101.39%
2020 28,565,605,020   2,499,190,780    472,007,200  31,536,803,000  11.30       33,734,313,300  93.49%
2021 28,953,587,172   2,756,282,428    483,291,200  32,193,160,800  11.53       33,734,313,300  95.43%
2022 31,078,907,345   2,791,292,155    484,176,000  34,354,375,500  11.28       35,764,453,000  96.06%
2023 33,729,173,360   2,869,118,840    504,991,200  37,103,283,400  10.86       35,764,453,000  103.74%
2024 37,057,496,400   2,822,242,500    581,984,900  40,461,723,800  10.36       43,926,712,800  92.11%

Source:  City of Newton Annual Tax Recap Sheet  

(1)  Does not include valuation affected by residential exemption

(2)  As of January 1st

(3)  Estimated actual value is based on equalized valuations determined biennially by the Commissioner of Revenue

Assessed Value (2)
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DIRECT PROPERTY TAX RATES (1) (2)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Commercial
Fiscal Residential and Industrial Personal Total
Year Real Property Real Property Property Direct (3)

2015 11.61                       22.38                       22.38                       12.65             
2016 11.38                       21.94                       21.94                       12.31             
2017 11.12                       21.27                       21.27                       11.98             
2018 10.82                       20.62                       20.62                       11.64             
2019 10.45                       19.94                       19.94                       11.24             
2020 10.44                       19.92                       19.92                       11.30             
2021 10.76                       20.12                       20.12                       11.53             
2022 10.52                       19.95                       19.95                       11.28             
2023 10.18                       19.07                       19.07                       10.86             
2024 9.76                         18.33                       18.33                       10.36             

Source:  City of Newton Tax Recap Sheets

(1)  Rates are applicable to each $1,000 of assessed value

(2)  Per the initiatives of Proposition 2 1/2 adopted by the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts, the City cannot levy more than 2.5 percent of the total full and 
fair cash value of all taxable real and personal property.  The City's levy is also
limited in that it cannot increase more than 2.5 percent from the prior year, with
certain exceptions for new growth or through overrides and exclusions adopted 
by City voters.

(3)  Calculated by dividing the net tax levy by total assessed value divided by 1,000
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Percentage Percentage
Tax of Total Tax of Total

Taxpayer Levy Rank Tax Levy Levy Rank Tax Levy

NStar Electric/Eversource $ 3,794,297       1 0.89% $ 2,798,348       1 1.00%
Boston Gas/National Grid 3,510,802       2 0.83% 1,479,983       6 0.53%
Chestnut Hill Shopping Center LLC 2,810,884       3 0.66% N/A N/A N/A
Big Grp 275 Grove Owner LLC 2,652,862       4 0.63% N/A N/A N/A
CHS Commercial Owner LLC 2,227,079       5 0.53% 1,052,245       8 0.38%
Mall at Chestnut Hill LLC 1,778,532       6 0.42% N/A N/A N/A
TCD 234 MA Wells Property LLC 1,478,925       7 0.35% N/A N/A N/A
Atrium Wellness Center II LLC 1,470,094       8 0.35% 1,055,518       7 0.38%
CHSP Newton LLC 1,436,700       9 0.34% N/A N/A N/A
Oama Newton LLC 1,082,215       10 0.26% N/A N/A N/A
Riverside Project, LLC N/A N/A N/A 2,264,538       2 0.81%
Daniel Rothenberg N/A N/A N/A 1,717,289       3 0.62%
Julian Cohen & Daniel Rothenberg Trust N/A N/A N/A 1,522,327       4 0.55%
Chesapeake Hotel Lmt Partnership N/A N/A N/A 1,481,770       5 0.53%
Verizon, New England Inc. N/A N/A N/A 1,032,210       9 0.37%
Thomas White Trust N/A N/A N/A 982,698          10 0.35%

Total $ 22,242,390     5.26% $ 15,386,926     5.52%

Source: City of Newton Board of Assessors.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS

CURRENT YEAR AND TEN YEARS AGO

20142024
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Total
Current Percent of Actual Collections

Fiscal Net Tax Tax Net Levy Subsequent Total Tax as a % of
Year Levy Collections Collected Collections Collections Net Levy (1)

2015 286,813,970     286,945,789     100.05% 3,278,528         290,224,317     101.19%
2016 299,404,279     300,308,851     100.30% 3,226,958         303,535,809     101.38%
2017 313,076,020     312,929,603     99.95% 5,456,420         318,386,023     101.70%
2018 327,216,395     324,044,849     99.03% 3,818,528         327,863,377     100.20%
2019 341,869,514     341,193,965     99.80% 4,750,204         345,944,169     101.19%
2020 356,245,085     352,098,630     98.84% 6,944,405         359,043,035     100.79%
2021 371,081,604     370,944,604     99.96% 2,342,527         373,287,131     100.59%
2022 387,547,722     387,685,067     100.04% 1,530,746         389,215,813     100.43%
2023 402,807,686     402,551,375     99.94% 1,781,430         404,332,805     100.38%
2024 419,038,328     418,608,277     99.90% -                  418,608,277     99.90%

Source:  Annual Tax Recap Sheet and General Ledger records

(1)  Total collections can exceed 100% due to the City's conservative statutory reserve for abatements, which reduces the
net tax levy.

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year of the Levy
Collected within the

Total Collections to Date
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General General MWRA/ Total
Fiscal Obligation Obligation MCWT Primary Per
Year Bonds Bonds Loans Government Capita (1)

2015 215,267,032                       16,364,817     12,863,980     244,495,829        2,753        
2016 265,560,962                       12,753,651     15,539,608     293,854,221        3,300        
2017 297,129,294                       11,363,684     20,434,763     328,927,741        3,696        
2018 309,971,105 12,669,055 18,453,577 341,093,737        3,837        
2019 304,886,963 18,797,987 17,448,871 341,133,821        3,858        
2020 324,893,237 18,682,996 18,285,646 361,861,879        4,093        
2021 308,666,842 21,208,834 15,893,720 345,769,396        3,954        
2022 306,813,846 22,617,477 16,833,040 346,264,363        3,963        
2023 300,490,686 30,941,199 17,287,770 348,719,655        3,944        
2024 300,351,219 28,424,829 16,487,670 345,263,718        3,905        

Note:  Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

(1)  See the "Demographic and Economic Statistics" schedule located in the Statistical Section for personal income 
and population data.  These ratios are calculated using personal income and population for the prior calendar year.

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE
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Less: Total Net  
General Resources General Percentage of Percentage of

Fiscal Obligation Restricted for Bonded Actual Taxable Estimated
Year Bonds Debt Principal Debt Value of Property (1) Personal Income (2)

2015 215,267,032     (2,835,755)        212,431,277        0.95% 3.77%
2016 265,560,962     (2,992,322)        262,568,640        1.00% 4.59%
2017 297,129,294     (2,803,983)        294,325,311        1.12% 5.25%
2018 309,971,105     (2,442,053)        307,529,052        1.02% 5.23%
2019 304,886,963     (2,339,315)        302,547,648        1.01% 4.99%
2020 324,893,237     (2,234,379)        322,658,858        0.96% 5.22%
2021 308,666,842     (2,234,379)        306,432,463        0.91% 4.74%
2022 306,813,846     (2,017,980)        304,795,866        0.85% 4.75%
2023 300,490,686     (1,908,803)        298,581,883        0.83% 4.22%
2024 300,351,219     (1,797,593)        298,553,626        0.68% 3.70%

(1) See the "Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property" schedule located in the Statistical
Section for property value data.

(2)  See the "Demographic and Economic Statistics" schedule located in the Statistical Section for personal income 
and population data.  These ratios are calculated using personal income and population for the prior calendar year.

RATIOS OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Net General Bonded Debt Outstanding
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DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT

JUNE 30, 2024

Estimated
Estimated Share of

Debt Percentage Overlapping
Outstanding Applicable (1) Debt

Massachusetts Water Resources Authority…...………………………………………………………...…………………..$ 4,508,257,000     4.47% $ 201,546,814      

City direct debt………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 345,263,718      

Total direct and overlapping debt……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..$ 546,810,532      

Sources:  MWRA

Governmental Unit
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 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

Equalized valuation………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………$ 43,926,712,800  $ 35,764,453,000     $ 35,764,453,000  $ 33,734,313,300  $ 33,734,313,300  
    

Normal debt limit (5% of equalized valuation)…...…………………………………………………. 2,196,335,640     1,788,222,650        1,788,222,650     1,686,715,665     1,686,715,665    
    

Debt applicable to limit:     
    

Total bonded debt………………………………………………………………………………………….. 345,263,718        348,719,655          346,264,363        345,769,396        361,861,879       
    

Less: General obligation bonds exempted by     
authority of state legislature…………………………………………………………………………. (27,172,570)        (28,217,770)           (24,352,620)        (20,312,900)        (23,100,445)       

    
Total net debt applicable to limit………………………………………………………………………… 318,091,148        320,501,885          321,911,743        325,456,496        338,761,434       

    
Legal debt margin………………………………………………………………………………………………..$ 1,878,244,492    $ 1,467,720,765       $ 1,466,310,907    $ 1,361,259,169    $ 1,347,954,231    

    
Total net debt applicable to the limit as     

a percentage of normal debt limit…………………………… 14.5%  17.9%  18.0%  19.3%  20.1%
    

LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS 

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION
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Estimated Median Public
Median Per Capita Personal Family School Unemployment

Year Population Age Income Income Income Enrollment Rate (%)

2014 88,287        40.1       63,872        5,639,067,264           119,148       12,503               3.4%
2015 88,817        41.9       64,475        5,726,476,075           118,639       12,508               3.1%
2016 89,045        42.3       62,983        5,608,321,235           122,080       12,657               2.5%
2017 88,994        40.5       66,047        5,877,786,718           127,402       12,750               2.4%
2018 88,904        40.5       68,155        6,059,252,120           133,853       12,685               1.8%
2019 88,414        40.5       69,859        6,176,513,626           139,696       12,611               1.5%
2020 88,414        40.5       73,101        6,463,151,814           151,068       11,910               5.5%
2021 87,453        40.5       73,398        6,418,875,294           154,398       11,810               3.8%
2022 87,381        40.5       81,020        7,079,608,620           164,607       11,717               2.6%
2023 88,415        41.7       91,282        8,070,698,030           176,373       11,596               2.6%

Sources: Population from City census
Per capita income, median age, and median family income is from various U.S. Census reports
Unemployment rates from Massachusetts Division of Unemployment Assistance for September of each year.
School enrollment represents October 1 total enrollment per Newton Public Schools.

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS
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Employees as of June 30

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
Function/Program

General government……………………………………………………………………. 179                   178                   155                   146                   149                   
Public safety………………………………………………………………………… 395                   392                   410                   389                   389                   
Education………………………………………………………………………… 2,386                 2,420                 2,066                 1,424                 1,424                 
Public works …………………………………………………………………………… 112                   112                   107                   92                     111                   
Health and human services…………………………..………………………………………………………. 48                     50                     46                     53                     50                     
Culture and recreation………………………………………………………………… 97                     101                   98                     92                     92                     
Water………………………………………………………………… 18                     17                     19                     21                     21                     
Sewer………………………………………………………………… 16                     19                     24                     25                     26                     
Stormwater………………………………………………………………… 7                       7                       8                       8                       8                       

Total………………………………………….. 3,258                 3,296                 2,933                 2,250                 2,270                 

Source: City of Newton payroll

LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS

EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
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2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

Public safety
Police

Stations………..………………………………..…………………………….. 1                  1                  1                  1                  1                 
Vehicles………………………………………………. 69                69                69                69                69               

Fire      
Stations…………………………………….……………………….. 6                  6                  6                  6                  6                 
Firefighting Vehicles………………………………….…………………………….  9                   9                   9                   9                   9                 

Education
Public school buildings…………………………………………...………………………… 22                22                22                22                22               

Public works      
Streets (miles)……………………………...………………………… 310              310              310              310              310             
Streetlights…………………………………………….. 8,595           8,595           8,595           8,595           8,595          
Traffic signals…………………………………………….. 98                98                98                98                98               
Parking meters………………….……………………………...……………………………… 1,671           1,671           1,671           1,671           1,671          

Culture and recreation      
Public libraries      

Main library……………………………….. 1                  1                  1                  1                  1                 
Park & playground Acreage……………………………………………………. 595              595              595              595              595             
Outdoor swimming facilities……………………………………………………. 2                  2                  2                  2                  2                 
Indoor swimming facilities……………………………………………………. 1                  1                  1                  1                  1                 
Public street trees  30,000         30,000         30,000         30,000         30,000        

Water      
Water mains (miles)……………………………………...…………………………. 300              300              300              300              300             
Fire hydrants………….…………………………………..……………………………. 2,400           2,400           2,400           2,400           2,400          
Storage capacity (thousands of gallons)……………………………………………………………………………….. 26,000,000   26,000,000   26,000,000   26,000,000   26,000,000  

Sewer      
Sanitary sewers (miles)……………………………………...…………………………. 300              300              300              300              300             
Sewer pump stations……………………………………...…………………………. 10                10                10                10                10               

Stormwater      
Stormdrains (miles)……………………………...………………………… 324              324              324              324              324             

  

Sources:  Various departments of the City of Newton

Fiscal Year

Function/Program

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS
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To Management 
City of Newton, Massachusetts 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the City of Newton, Massachusetts (City) as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2024, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, we considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting (internal 
control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. 

However, during our audit we became aware of matters that are opportunities for strengthening internal controls and 
operating efficiency. We also wanted to make you aware of a recently issued accounting standard which is expected to 
impact your financial statements. The memorandum that accompanies this letter summarizes our comments and 
recommendations regarding those matters. This letter does not affect our report dated REPORT DATE, on the 
financial statements of the City. 

We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. We have already discussed these 
comments and suggestions with various City personnel, and we will be pleased to discuss them in further detail at 
your convenience, to perform any additional study of these matters, or to assist you in implementing the 
recommendations. 

The City’s written responses to the matters identified in our audit have not been subjected to the audit procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them. 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Audit Committee and others 
within the organization and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified 
parties. 

 

Boston, Massachusetts 
REPORT DATE 
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1 

Off-Leash Dog Licenses 

Comment 

We evaluated internal controls related to the administration of off-leash dog licenses being issued by the City Clerk’s 
Office and identified the following areas for improvement: 

 All licenses are entered into a database within the City Hall Systems software. The database stores
information such as fees paid for licenses, license type, and renewal period. While a daily reconciliation of
permit receipts to daily deposits is performed by the Treasurer’s office, there is no periodic reconciliation of
license fees recorded in City Hall Systems to receipts posted in the City’s Munis general ledger.

 City Hall Systems is programmed to flag expired licenses for non-renewal. While non-renewals are pursued by
the City Clerk’s office, there is no formal review of non-renewal data extracted from the software. A formal
review may be beneficial to identify any trends or anomalies in the license data.

 The City Clerk’s Office issues pre-numbered tags to affix to dog collars or harnesses. There is no
reconciliation implemented to compare the number of physical tags issued to the licenses issued in the City
Hall Systems’ software.

The City plans to transition the tracking software for dog licenses to OpenGov in 2025.  

Recommendation 

We recommend the City Clerk’s Office explore the cost/benefit of performing the following periodic reconciliations: 

1. Off-leash license fees recorded in the permit software should be reconciled to off-leash license fees recorded
in the Munis general accounting ledger.

2. Pre-numbered tags on hand in the City Clerk’s Office should be reconciled to the total number of licenses
issued and recorded in the license software. For example, the City Clerk’s Office could periodically compare
the lowest pre-numbered physical tag on hand to the highest pre-numbered tag number assigned in City Hall
Systems.

We recommend such reconciliations be documented, dated, and signed by a preparer.  

We also recommend the City explore methods to analytically review off-lease license data on a periodic basis. Reviews 
could consider anomalies such as the following:  

 Customers who purchased licenses in the prior year, but not the current year.
 Licenses with long-outstanding non-renewals (greater than 60 days)
 Other data relationships; such as the renewal date of off-leash licenses compared to the expiration date of

required vaccinations.

Management’s Response 
OPEN 
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2 

Financial Close and Reporting 

Comment 

Health Insurance Fund 
During our analytical procedures, we identified approximately $8.6 million of employee contributions to the City’s 
health insurance internal service fund were recorded as employer contributions in the general ledger. An audit 
adjustment was provided to management to correct the allocation of these contributions in the City’s financial 
statements.  

Capital Assets 
The City currently uses an internally generated Excel database to keep track of capital assets and depreciation. During 
our review of the database, we identified errors that reported certain assets as over or under-depreciated, which 
required subsequent corrections.   

Recommendation 
We recommend the Comptroller’s Office strengthen its financial close and reporting procedures surrounding its 
review of health insurance contributions to identify and mitigate similar instances in future reporting periods.  

Additionally, we recommend the City consider implementing a capital assets software to utilize for annual financial 
reporting; which can reduce the reliance on manual adjustments as well as the risk of similar errors.  

Management’s Response 
OPEN 
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Newton Community Education Program 
 
Comment 
The Community Education program currently operates at a deficit. Upon further review and discussion with program 
management, it was identified that the annual budget process does not adequately consider the expenses incurred for 
operation.  For example, operating costs (such as salaries and rent) and indirect costs (such as pension and OPEB 
assessments) are not factored into the development of fees charged to program participants. Additionally, these costs 
are not considered when determining the necessary class sizes needed for programs to break even. 
 
Recommendation 
 
We recommend management implement the following: 

1. Develop and document a process to identify all direct and indirect costs associated with operating the 
program during the annual budget period. Costs identified should encompass overhead, management salaries, 
pension assessments, and other relevant expenses. 

2. Review the indirect cost allocation methodology to verify that costs charged to the community education 
program accurately reflect the indirect resources contributed by the City. 

3. Adjust the pricing strategy for fees charged to the public to properly consider the costs of operation 
(including both direct and indirect costs). 

4. Reevaluate the class size requirements to ensure they are sufficient to cover all associated costs and maintain 
the program's self-reliance. 

5. Conduct periodic reviews of the program’s financial operating performance to ascertain if the budgeting 
process and cost allocations remain reasonable and consider actual costs incurred. 

 
Management’s Response 
OPEN 
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4 

General Ledger Integration of Police Details 

Comment 

Our prior year management letter identified that subsequent to fiscal 2014 year end, the City’s Information 
Technology Department developed a new billing and collection system for police details that is fully integrated with 
the police detail scheduling and payroll systems of the City. The remaining step was to integrate the system with the 
general ledger. 

Given the multi-phase process of fully implementing Munis, the City has strategically targeted other aspects of the 
Munis General Billing module before going forward with the police details integration.  

Recommendation 

We recommend the City continue its progress with Munis General Billing and move forward with the integration of 
police details when deemed appropriate. 

Management’s Response 

OPEN 
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Informational Comment – New Accounting and Financial Reporting Standard (GASB 101) 

Comment 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued Statement Number 101 related to compensated 
absences (accrued sick and vacation time, etc.). The Statement will become effective for fiscal year 2025. 

Compensated absences is already reported in the City’s financial statements. However, Statement Number 101 adds 
some considerations in determining the liability by stating that the liability should be recognized for leave that is 
“more likely than not” to be used, paid, or otherwise settled. In accordance with the Statement, the City will need to 
re-evaluate the liability in the context of “more likely than not”, considering factors such as employment policies 
related to compensated absences and historical information about the use or payment of compensated absences. 

Recommendation 

We recommend the City prepare for the implementation of GASB Statement Number 101 for fiscal year 2025. The 
City should also maintain any historical information or other leave data used in developing its estimate of the year-end 
compensated absences liabilities.  
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